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Our mission
is to consolidate the leading
market position by providing
a wide range of value-added
silicone rubber products.
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Corporate Structure
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The Chart is made up to 31st July 2008
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Directors and Senior Management Profile

SEEkEREEAEMT

Huang Sheng-Shun

Chairman and Executive Director

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, aged 54, is the Chairman and Executive
Director of the Company. He is responsible for the development
of our general corporate strategy, operation management, planning
and decision making. Mr. Huang, together with Mr. Wu Ih Chen,
founded the Group on 7th May 1991. Prior to the establishment of
the Group, he was the operation manager of a chemical company
between June 1978 and May 1982, Afterwards, he worked at
Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. (KJ¥mfg T ¥R AR A
a)), a private company, and since 1986 became the company’s
general manager until 2005. Mr. Huang and his family members
have been the shareholders of Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co.,
Ltd. until Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd., ceased operations
and was wound up in April 2006. Save as disclosed, there is no
relationship between Ta Yang Oil N Fat Industrial Co., Ltd. and
each of the Group, its directors, its substantial shareholders and
their respective associates.

Mr. Huang has also been a Non-executive Director of Formosan
Union Chemical Corp., a company listed on the Taiwan Stock
Exchange Corporation, from 1st July 1987 to 30th June 1996 and
from 1st July 2002 to present. He has over 29 years of experience
in management positions in the chemical manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang graduated from the Faculty of Law, National Taiwan
University in 1976. Mr. Huang is the father of Mr. Huang Te-Wei,
an Executive Director of the Company.
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Directors and Senior I\/Ianagement Profile

EENESREEABER

Wu |Ih Chen

Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Wu Ih Chen, aged 57, is the Executive Director and chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Wu has over 21 years of
experience in the silicone rubber industry. Mr. Wu, together with
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun founded the Group on 7th May 1991. He
is currently mainly responsible for the marketing, administration
and financial planning of the Group. He is also devoted to the
development of the core techniques and has personally developed
various patented keypads. Mr. Wu graduated from the Aletheia
University in 1971 and completed the Studying Program for Hong
Kong Senior Management in Business organised by the Peking
University in the PRC. Mr. Wu is Director for the Eleventh Board
of Directors of International Association of Chinese Traders. Mr.
Wu is the elder brother of Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, the associate general
manager of the Group and the father of Mr. Wu Chung-chieh, Jack
and Ms. Wu Pei Min who are the corporate development manager
and the corporate relations manager of the Group.

Kirk Yang

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Kirk Yang, aged 41, is an Executive Director and chief financial
officer of the Company. He joined the Group in April 2008 and
is responsible for overseeing the areas of financial control and
accounting, treasury, corporate finance, investment, M&A, public
relations and institutional investors relations of the Group. He
holds Bachelor (with distinction) and Master of Science degrees
in Electrical Engineering from Purdue University and Master of
Business Administration (Finance, Accounting and Marketing
concentrations) from University of Chicago.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yang was a Managing Director and
Head of Asia Technology Research of Citi Investment Research
of Citigroup Global Markets Asia Limited based in Hong Kong
(“Citi"). He was also awarded the No.1 analyst by Institutional
Investors, Financial Times and Greenwich in 2004, 2006 and 2007
respectively in recognition of his accomplishment in investment
equity research industry. Before joining Citi, Mr. Yang served as
the Director and Head of Asia Technology Hardware Research at
Credit Suisse and No. 1 analyst. Mr. Yang has more than eight
years of experience in investment equity research industry including
worked at Goldman Sachs and BNP Paribas respectively. Mr.
Yang also has more than seven years experience in management
consulting, sales/marketing and engineering operation in various
corporations such as A.T. Kearney, Accenture, EDS, Emerson
Electric, IBM, and AT&T.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Wong Tak Leung

Executive Director

Mr. Wong Tak Leung, aged 47, is an executive Director. Mr. Wong
joined the Group in May 1993 and was subsequently promoted
to deputy general manager in 2001. Mr. Wong is responsible for
the sales and marketing functions of the Group. During 1981 to
1989, Mr. Wong served in the Strategic Planning Department of
Hong Kong Aircraft Engineering Company Limited.

Lin Hung-Ming

Executive Director and Research & Development Director

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming, aged 44, is an executive Director and
Research and Development Director of the Company. Mr. Lin
joined the Group in 1993 and is currently responsible for
research and development of the Group. Mr. Lin graduated from
the Department of Mechanics, Private Chih-Kwang Vocational
High School of Business and Technology. He has 20 years
of experience in the silicone rubber industry. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Lin was a factory manager of an electronics
company in Taiwan.
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Directors and Senior I\/Ianagement Profile
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Huang Te-Wei

Executive Director & General Manager

Mr. Huang Te-Wei, aged 28, is an Executive Director and the general
manager of the Group. He is the head of our control department
with responsibilities for overseeing the Group's compliance and
internal control matters. From 2008 onwards, Mr. Huang was also
responsible for the supervision of the daily operation of the Group
factories in PRC and strategic planning. Mr. Huang graduated
from the Industrial Administration stream, Department of Business
Administration, National Taiwan University and has undergone
military training in Taiwan. Mr. Huang is the eldest son of Mr.
Huang Sheng-Shun, the Chairman of the Group.

Yeung Chi Tat

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat, aged 39, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in May 2007. He holds a bachelor’s degree
in business administration from The University of Hong Kong and
a master's degree in professional accounting from Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a member of the Institute
of Chartered Certified Accountants in England and Wales, a certified
public accountant practising in Hong Kong and a senior international
finance manager of International Financial Management Association.
He is currently the financial controller, qualified accountant and
company secretary of Dynasty Fine Wines Group Limited (Stock
Code: 828) and an Independent Non-executive Director of Anta
Sports Products Limited (Stock Code: 2020), both of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong.
Mr. Yeung is also an Independent Non-executive Director of Linefan
Technology Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 8166) which is listed on
the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. Mr. Yeung
has previously worked at a major international accounting firm for
over ten years. He possesses experience in auditing, corporate
restructuring and corporate financial services.
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Directors and Senior Management Profile
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Hsieh Yu

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Hsieh Yu, aged 60, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in May, 2007. He obtained a certificate for
solicitor in Taiwan in 1977 and joined the Taipei Bar Association
immediately as a practising Attorney-at-Law. He is the responsible
officer of B¢1ESEREIEHT. He had been the legal consultant for
various corporations and organisations. Mr. Hsieh graduated from
the Faculty of Law, National Taiwan University in 1976.

Chuang Hong-Jen

Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen, aged 54 was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in May 2007. Mr. Chuang has experience
in the financial services industry as he acted as a deputy general
manager in a securities company in Taiwan from 1989 to 1996.
Mr. Chuang also has experience in the display devices industry.
Mr. Chuang graduated from the Tamsui Institute of Business
Administration of Taiwan in June 1975. He obtained his bachelor
degree from Feng Chia University in June 1980, and was awarded
a master's degree from the Department of Accounting, Soochow
University in June 1984, For the last three years, Mr. Chuang was
the Director of Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd. (formerly known as
Q-Run Technology Corp.), and the chairman of Innolux Display
Corporation, both companies are listed companies on the Taiwan
Stock Exchange Corporation which engage in the production of
liquid crystal display devices.
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Directors and Senior I\/Ianagement Profile
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Chan Oi Fat

Financial Controller & Company Secretary

Mr. Chan Oi Fat, aged 30, the financial controller, the company
secretary and the qualified accountant of the Company who is
responsible for the financial and accounting management and
secretarial affairs of the Group. Mr. Chan joined the Group in January
2008. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Chan was an audit manager
in an international accounting firm. Mr. Chan has over 8 years
experience in professional accounting and auditing experience.
Mr. Chan graduated from The City University of Hong Kong with
a bachelor degree in accountancy. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Chih Hai-Pin

Associate General Manager

Mr. Chih Hai-Pin, aged 49 is the associate general manager. He
oversees the operation of our quality control department. Mr. Chih
joined our Group in July 1991. He has 19 years of experience
in the silicone rubber industry. He is currently responsible for
the management of the quality control of our products. Mr. Chih
graduated from the Department of Japanese, Soochow University,
Taiwan and holds a ISO9000 External Auditing Qualification
Certificate issued by the American Quality System Registrar.

Luo Bao Dong

Financial Manager

Mr. Luo Bao Dong, aged 35, is the financial manager. Mr. Luo
joined the Group in August 1997. Mr. Luo is responsible for the
daily operations of our financial and control department, taxation
and internal control of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group. He also
provides assistance to the management in administration and
personnel management. Mr. Luo has obtained the Accountant
Professional Qualification and the Certificates of the PRC certified
public accountant and the Certificate of PRC Registered Tax
Agent.

Wu Tien-Tao

Associate General Manager

Mr. Wu Tien-Tao, aged 50, is the associate general manager.
He oversees the operation of Huzhou Factory. Mr. Wu joined
our Group in August 2003 and has been responsible for the
operation of the Huzhou factory of the Group since then.
Mr. Wu has over 11 years of experience in the production of
silicone rubber and 11 years of experience in production of
multiple layered and soft printed circuit boards. Mr. Wu is the
younger brother of Mr. Wu In Chen, an Executive Director of the
Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

Qur evolving organization, through consolidation,
rationalization and integration, has been able
to secure steady business performance
during the yeatr.
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Huang Sheng-Shun
=R
ChairmanZ/E

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Ta Yang Group Holdings
Limited, I am pleased to present to all our shareholders the annual
report of the Group for the year ended 31st July 2008.

Our theme this year is reengineering, restructuring and turnaround
with an aim to maintain continuous growth. During the year, the
Group continued to focus on its business consolidation while cost
control measures were effectively employed to improve operational
efficiency. We believe that we have the right strategy and initiatives
in place to achieve this goal.

Our evolving organization, through consolidation, rationalization and
integration, has been able to secure steady business performance
during the year. The Group continues to explore new opportunities by
expanding our production of high value-added products, particularly
to the silicone rubber keypads of notebooks and mobile phones,
with a will to enhance the profitability.

Financial Results

For the financial year ended 371st July 2008, the Group achieved a
turnover amounting to HK$744,908,000, increased by 18% when
compared to HK$629,839,000 last year.

The Group's profit for the year was HK$100,383,000, represented
a decrease of 37% when compared to HK$159,589,000 last year.
Basic earnings per share for the year was HK12.55 cents (2007
HK19.95 cents).

FR

$/\u§ﬁ2‘~%j§/¥’§l% BERARIZESRE
MAMERRREAEEBRE_TTN\F
LRS- BILEEER -

AEERFANEETHAEBEE  ARE
MR ERER L‘A%’Eﬁ%iiﬁﬁ BiZo &
A AEBEBEIITNERES  WERIAK
njpiey %‘J?aﬁ&b@mm%@)&m REEEE
BB FREVE SRS R FEIE - B PIEKBIZ o

FAAEBETERE  BAEKAH - BER
B ANEE  (RERGRENDEER - K
SEEGARSBEEREEXT  LEZE

AEERRDBEBFROYELR B34
ERIRATA - (eTiRE AR B
BIECE S

AEBHE_ZSENFLA=Z+T BT
FE RS T RT744,008,0008 7T WEFEH
629,839,000/ 7T = F+18% °

NEBEEREFA AEL G A100,383,000

BT B EF /& #159,5689,0000 T T

B37% e KREENEFREF B12.555 1
ZETAF  19.9581l) o

Annual Report 2008 15 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

SRENRIERE -




Chairman’s Statement
FEHmE

Business Review

Despite of the global financial turmoil which led to a volatility in sales
orders received from our customers, the Group continued to record
a growth in turnover during the year. Consumer electronic devices
are still the primary business and the largest source of income of
the Group, accounting for 54% of the total turnover. The increase
was attributable to the increase in sales orders received from certain
customers and the number of new customers. However, on the
other hand, there has been a decreasing trend in the gross profit
margin of the Group during the year. One of the main reasons is
the drastic increase in operational costs such as raw material cost
and labour costs. The drastic increase in operational costs has run
more quickly than the adjustment in selling price. Consequently,
there is a decline in gross profit margin during the year.

In order to improve the situation, during the year, our focus was
on further strengthening our foundation through restructuring,
reengineering and turnaround with an aim to develop a strong
and talented team and engage professional consultants to enhance
our production efficiency. To improve our productivity in the long
term, an increase in our costs and charges in the short term will
Pe inevitable. However, by leveraging on our cost control measures
and improving productivity, it is expected that our gross profit margin
and net profit margin will be enhanced in the coming year.

Outlook

Due to the recent financial turmoil, the operation environment in
the manufacturing industry is inevitably facing greater challenges.
However, the Group will regard them as an opportunity instead of
crisis to equip itself well for future growth. It also allows the Group
to capture new investment opportunities of vertical integration and
horizontal expansion for long term strategic development.

We continue to believe that our greatest opportunity to create value
for our shareholders is through further expanding our core business,
increasing the quality and quantity of marketing professionals and
strengthening our research and development to produce innovative
silicone products.

Furthermore, the Group successfully expanded its new business
lines by establishing a new brand “SIPALS” to produce a diversified
range of household silicone rubber products. This expansion
enhances the Group's overall offering to our customers. The Group
will keep on developing more new products and services so as to
capture new opportunities.

Appreciation

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to thank
the management and staff for their concerted efforts during these
challenging times. The Group will continue to focus on financial
and operating discipline to improve its performance.

Huang Sheng-Shun
Chairman and Executive Director
11th November 2008
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Business Review & Outlook
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Industry Review

Over the past few years, there was a phenomenal growth in the
4Cs industry. This growth could be attributed to the increasing
effect of state of the art electronic devices on the market. The
removal of entry barriers across the market and industry boundaries
combined of the hitherto separated markets of digital-based audio,
video and information technology. This combination of technologies
had resulted in a greater demand for consumer devices which offer
multiple functions. Therefore, with the introduction of new products
by manufacturers and market demand for new model grades,
tfriggered the increase in demand for silicone rubber keypads.
However, the recent global financial turmoil weakened the consumer
confidence and hence the demand for consumer products.
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Business Review & Outlook
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Business Review

Despite of the global financial turmoil which led to a volatility in
sales orders received from our customers, the Group continued
to record a growth in turnover during the year, with an increase
of 18.3% from HK$629.8 million to HK$744.9 million. Consumer
electronic devices are still the primary business and the largest
source of income of the Group, accounting for 54% of the total
turnover. The increase was attributable to the increase in sales
orders received from certain customers together with the dedicated
efforts of our management and staff in exploring new customers
from both overseas and PRC markets.

There has been a decreasing trend in the gross profit margin of
the Group during the year. One of the main reasons is the drastic
increase in operational costs such as raw material cost and labour
costs. The upsurge of crude oil prices, new PRC labour law and
the appreciation of the Renminbi, all converged to a tough and
volatile operating environment for the manufacturing industry. The
drastic increase in operational costs has run more quickly than
the adjustment in selling price. Consequently, there is a decline in
gross profit margin during the year.
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Business Review & Outlook
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In order to improve the situation, during the year, our focus was
on further strengthening our foundation through restructuring,
reengineering and turnaround. Developing strong base leadership
and talent is our key growth priorities. We expanded its management
team, enlisting those most capable of providing new insights,
perspectives and methodologies. The ultimate purpose is to ensure
that the Group is operated with utmost professionalism and efficiency
from the top down. With the strategy of restructuring, reengineering
and turnaround, the Group has engaged a professional consultant
to review the operation of the Group to improve the efficiency for
the production.

Despite the competitive operating environment, the keypads for
notebooks remain steady growth. Besides, the co-operation with
Shin-Etsu Polymer Co., Ltd (“Shin-Etsu”) in mobile phone keypads
continue to perform well in the year. The Group will continue to
work closely with Shin-Etsu to enhance the profit. As a result of the
continuous effort in sales teams, it is expected that the revenues
from keypads will be improved by the growth of new customers.

In addition, the Group has recently adopted the strategy of developing
new products with higher gross profit margin, implementing cost
control measures and improving production efficiency for the year
in order to enhance the gross profit margin. It is expected the gross
profit margin would be improved in the coming year.

RTREBR AREEFRNEEEE B2
RWE  EIRNE—SEEHEER - AEBEF
ZEEREYENHENBEERIFHRER - &
SECREREEERGES  BENERFHE
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Business Review & Outlook

Outlook

Due to the uncertainties of overall global economy, the outbreak
of natural disasters in Mainland China, the recent financial turmail,
the implement of new labour laws in Mainland China, the Group
were inevitably facing more challenging operating environment.
Nevertheless, the Group would treat them as opportunity instead
of crisis to strengthen our current business by growing existing
products to clients and explore new business for further expansion.
With the continued focus on operating and financial disciplines
in operation of the Group, the Groups has laid the foundation to
capture new orders from competitors with financial difficulties and
achieve the goal to improve the performance of the Group.

In terms of production, the Group increased its capacity through
enhancement initiatives as well as integrated the existing production
lines. To cope with market challenges, the Group also acquired
a piece of land in Guangdong Province, the PRC, to build up a
new factory to increase its production capacity. With the additional
new plant, the Group believed that the larger economies of scales
enable us to offer more competitive price to capture the growing
demand for electrical devices sector in future. In addition, the
Group has increased its application ability of raw materials by the
establishment of a plant in Huzhou, the PRC, for the production
of raw material.
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Leveraging on the established foundation, the Group will keep on
diversifying our production line in order to develop new products
to capture new opportunities. Besides, the Group will leverage its
resources to increase its market shares through exploring new
opportunities by bringing in strategic partners and expertise in
silicone rubber products.

The Group continued further to diversify its current business
by establishing new brand namely “SI (Silicone) + PALS (pals
=friends)”. Usage of silicone rubber was far more than just used
in making keypad, it could be applied to every aspect of our living
such as stationery, kitchenware and Silicone case for iPhone etc.
Combining precise molding, green or RoHS approved material,
SIPALS was established to produce fancy daily living products
with silicone rubber. By gathering designs and ideas from different
countries, experienced designers, innovation, competitive price,
SIPALS was ready to offer best quality products with competitive
price to fulfill our customers’ needs. The Group will continue to
build up “SIPALS" through developing new products, improving
the quality of existing products and strengthening its sales network
and services to enhance its profit margin and competitiveness in
the marketplace.

Looking forward, as new challenges are expected to come across
by the Group. The Group will tighten credit control and maintain strict
cost savings scheme to minimise business risks. In particular, the
management is aware of the continuous rising cost of production.
Cost savings will be one of its main target to be achieved in coming
days. At the same time, building good strategic relationships with
our customers would not be ignored. Accordingly, the Group will
further increase the market shares of our various products by
continued expanding our customer base. In addition, the Group
will enhance our research and development capability to enable
us to better match the demand of customers and improve the
coordination and extent of our research and development, thus
strengthening the leading position of the Group and paving the
foundation for our future.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key financial figures for the year ended 31st July 2008 are

AT

BRIy

LY P AEI) ]

HE_ZTZN\FLA=T—"BHILFENTEY

extracted as follows: BEFTRHEWNT :
2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Turnover = 744,908 629,839
Gross profit EH 213,489 219,169
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX (28,988) (20,917)
Administrative expenses THRAX (94,945) (46,939)
Earnings before interest and taxes B A FE 103,234 163,979
Finance costs & A (1,875) (5,389)
Income tax (expense) credit Fifsf (AX) % (976) 999
Profit for the year F R 100,383 159,589
Sales by Product
REERDTENEE
54.4% 27.3%
51.9% /
/ 26.1%
4.1% 5.3%
15.2% 7.3%
2.7% 5.7%
Keypads for mobile Keypads for consumer Keypads for Automotive perpheral Others
phone electronic devices computers and EERERES Hi
Figirhe HEBETEMRSE notebooks
B R LT
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B E R T

Turnover

Turover represents gross revenue generated from the sales of
our products, net of sales tax and other similar taxes. Turnover is
affected by the volume of total products sold and the product mix
Pecause our product lines have different selling prices.

The consolidated turnover for the year ended 31st July 2008 was
increased by 18.3% to HK$744.9 million (2007 HK$629.8 million)
while our profit attributable to equity shareholders was
HK$100.4 million (2007: HK$159.6 million).

Basic earnings per share of the Company was HK12.55 cents per
share based on the weighted average number of 800,000,000
shares in issue during the year (2007: HK19.95 cents per share
based on weighted average number of 800,000,000 shares).

Keypads for consumer electronic devices

Turnover from the sales of keypads for consumer electronics
devices increased by approximately 23.9% to HK$405.3 million
in 2008 from HK$327.2 million in 2007. During the year, the sales
of keypads for home audio related product and multi-function
printers increased significantly. In addition, after the accreditation
from Nintendo Japan, the Group has become one of their major
suppliers of silicone protective cover for their Wii console handheld
devices “Wii Jacket” and it contributed approximately 7.3% to the
Group’s turnover for 2008.

E -

EERBREAREHEERASRKRENREE
BREMBURE AR AKENEREE

BR WEXBXETRMEERERMEGHY
2B o

TEENFLA=Z+—HLEFE®
= % F 12 A018.3%% 744,900,000/ TT
(: T+ £ 1 629,800,000/ 7T ) © M A &£

E MR A AR ST A100,400,0007% 7T
—ZTEHF 159,600,000/ 7T) °

BHEZ
fe= A
(=)

BREFAEBHTRODOMETFHTH
800,000,000 51 & + KRR EGRERZF
BI255BI( =BT LF  RIBENEFHE
800,000,000 5+ & &% 19.9571l1) °

HEMEFEmEKRE

HEHEBUNE FERIRBEMBEXEMH
—Z T+ FHI327,200,0008 T HN 4923.9%
2 =TT )\ FK405,300,00087C ° FAR - K
EES2REERREeTHIEMNIRREIESE X
TR0 - AN - LHAEXREETE - AEE
B ARENWIE#AFIREZIWI Jacket]
ZWRBHEENTERER L — ZERER
SEE-_ZTTN\FHEEBELNT.3% -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B IR E R B AT

Keypads for mobile phone

Turnover from the sales of mobile phone keypads increased by
approximately 151.2% to HK$42.2 million in 2008 from HK$16.8 million
in 2007. In January 2007, a new production plant located in
Dongguan is responsible for the production of advanced mobile
phone keypads which increase the production volume on mobile
phone keypads. Accordingly, the significant increase was due to
the full year effect of the increase in production volume by the new
production plant together with the steady growth in sales orders
received from customers.

Keypads for computers and notebooks

Turnover from the sales of keypads for computers and notebooks
increased by approximately 23.8% to HK$203.6 million in 2008
from HK$164.5 million in 2007. The growth was attributable to the
burgeoning global demand for notebook computers. The Group
is confident in the growth on sales of keypads for notebooks for
the second half of 2008 as the demand for notebooks continue
to increase and relatively higher seasonal sales occur.

Automotive peripheral products

Turnover from the sales of automotive peripheral products
increased by approximately 51.6% to HK$39.1 million in 2008 from
HK$25.8 million in 2007. The increase was attributed to the launch
of several new automotive peripheral products especially for the
Japanese market during the year.

FHrzE

HEFRIZRASEEERA_ZTZTLFW
16,800, ooo,%m*buzwsw 2%E—EENF
#942,200,000/7C - RZZTZ+F—H  #i4E
EMRFEE R EESEF IR - Mg inF
BIRBHEES - At - RIBENTIEARES
AR A K §Y E 5T B IE IS I A 2 FRNE o

EHR EELBIRE

HEENIERAENZRMSEEEER
~Z T+ F 164,500,000 JT 1 HN 4923.8%
2T T )\ F1)203,600,0005 7T © K Jh
RERERAERETRZEBEM - AEEEE
DERAEMHEESRE T \F T F212
§E - RERFLRAEIEOT S E LN RESE
EERENEEIEHE -

BB E
HEREREEGMSEETEA_ZTTLFRN
25,800,000/ TTIE 114151 6% E —EF N\ FHY
39,100,000/ 7T - mIEE R JIR N F R (E 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Cost of Sales
Cost structure

The overall cost of sales increased by approximately 29.4% from
HK$410.7 million in 2007 to HK$531.4 million in 2008. The rate
of increase in cost of sales is higher than that of turnover due to
the significant increase in production costs in PRC. This was due
to an upsurge of raw material and crude oil prices. In addition, the
new PRC labour law launched in January 2008 gave additional
pressure to our labour costs. Together with other rising overneads
and appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB”), all these led to a tough
operating environment in the industry and cause the production
cost to continue to increase this year.

Gross profit

The gross profit of the Group for the year 2008 was HK$213.5
million, which represented a decrease of approximately 2.6% from
that of HK$219.2 million for the year 2007. The decrease in gross
profit was due to the Group has suffering from the adverse effect
of increasing raw material costs and labour costs while not being
able to shift all the increasing costs to the customers. In addition,
some of the new products launched had lower gross profit margin
in order to capture the market share. All these factors led the
Group’s overall gross profit margin to decrease.

Other operating income

Other operating income increased by approximately 58.7% to
HK$21.1 million in 2008 from HK$13.3 million in 2007, primarily
due to the increase in interest income from bank deposits.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
38.6% to HK$29.0 million in 2008 from HK$20.9 million in 2007.
The increase was due to larger sales volume and the continuous
increase in costs.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses increased by approximately 102.3% to
HK$94.9 million in 2008 from HK$46.9 million in 2007 . The increase
was a result of the share options expenses of HK$5.5 million
and additional management and administrative costs incurred to
support the expansion of business and new production bases.
Moreover, in order to increase the Group'’s efficiency and improve
overall operation environment. The Group has spent approximately
HK$4 million to engage professional consultants to provide advisory
service for improvement.

HERA
BAA

B HER AR Z T F 410,700,000/ 7T
EANA20.4% %2 —EE )\ FH)531,400,0008 7T °
HERAERAREREEFNERAR - &R
R E R EEK A AR IS INFTEL o TR R
B R FUBERSIE o fhh RZFTZ )\E
—ABEMZFRRHEEEMMERAEE 24T
AN o i EE A E RN R R ARBHHE
EEAREREANCEREZERBEE - EK
REEWEENTFE LR -

E7

AEBEBRZZE :J\Eﬁm%ﬂi%
213500000,%557z BRZIZEZLFEWN
219,200,000 JT &k 4 492. 6% ERMTEET
ARANEBZEMBKAN RS TRA A8
THFE mMASERESEABIERNK
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DHELNEREMNETLERE - EEAX
HREREENEEERNETE -

H &g A

H @& A B =TT+ 4 /13,300,000 7T
EINKIS8.7%E —FF N\FHI21,100,00058 7T
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HER T HRX

HE R RS A =TT+ FH920,900,0008 7T
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#3102.3%%E — & Z )\ & 194,900,000/ JT °
17 S 38 b0 T | A B AR A A 25,500,000/
TR AT EESMFAEEIERMENNEE
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MRERAEBRBEERE  AEERAY
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Finance costs

Finance costs decreased to HK$1.9 million in 2008 from
HK$5.4 million in 2007 because the bank borrowing had been
fully repaid during the year.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year decreased from HK$159.6 million for the year
ended 31st July 2007 to HK$100.4 million for the year ended
31st July 2008, representing a decrease of approximately 37.1%.
The net profit margin of our Group decreased from 25.3% for
the year ended 31st July 2007 to 13.5% for the year ended
31st July 2008.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Directors expect that dividends will be paid as interim and/or
final dividends. We currently intend to pay annual cash dividends of
not less than 30% of our Group’s audited consolidated profits after
taxation to our shareholders for the applicable year. However, the
determination to pay such dividends will be made at the discretion
of our Board and will be based upon our operating results, cash
flows, financial positions, capital requirements and other relevant
circumstances that the Board deems relevant. The payment of
dividends may be limited by legal restrictions and by agreements
that we may enter into in the future. Our Directors are of the views
that our dividend policy will not affect the sufficiency of our working
capital in the coming years.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND
TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management
and investment on uncommitted funds. The net proceeds from
the international offering (as defined in the Prospectus) have been
placed on short-term deposits with authorised financial institutions
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

During the year, the Group’s receipts were mainly denominated in
US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. Payments were mainly made
in US dollars and RMB,

A& R

B4 AR AR 1 — BB 4 95,400,000/ TE R
£ -TFT\F /1,900,000 7T © 1tk T 7 F
PIRTTHEHE 2 HBEIE -

FAR=EFA
FRRABAHE_EELFLA=+—HIEF
EH159,600,0008 LA EHE_SZTNF
+tA=Z+—HILFE 100,400,000 7T * &
BAI37.1% « REBEMGEFERBEE-_TT+
FEA=ZT—HIFERLIWRPEHE
ZENFLA=Z+—HILFEE/M13.5% °
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DPRAKEREZRABRREENB0%NFE
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B 1 B R wm B AT

In respect of the US dollar, the management regards that the foreign
exchange risk for Hong Kong dollar to US dollar is not material
because (i) Hong Kong dollar remains pegged to the US dollar and
(ily most of the Group’s purchases are denominated in US dollars,
which are to be settled by sales receipts in US dollars.

In respect of the RMB, as the Group’s production plants are located
in the PRC, most of our labour costs, manufacturing overheads,
selling and administrative expenses were denominated in RMB.
Therefore, the appreciation of RMB will adversely affect the Group’s
profitability. The management will closely monitor the trend of RMB
and take appropriate action accordingly.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

During the year, the Group’s source of fund was cash generated
from net proceeds of the international offering and operating
activities.

FAERTTME » EEERRE T ETTHSNER
BRI ABA - B R0)ETT)E S TTH 8 K (i) A
SERIOHEBIAEITINE - BUETHE
Wah#EHE -

MARBMS - AR AKENEEREHLRN
B BRERD 5 TAA ~ EEREMAA - 3
ERITRAXHAAREIIE - Hit - ARKE
THERSAKBNANENTRINEE - &
It EEERENERARBNEE LREUE
E1TE)

EE 2l ﬁ%&/\jﬁ%ﬁﬂ?\

FR-ARBENESRRIZAREBREE
FISRIBF R LKL EHNRE -

As at As at

31st July 2008 31st July 2007

S S

—ETN\F —ETLF

+tA=+—H +tA=+—AH

HK$°000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Cash and cash equivalents ReMREEEY 487,429 609,255
Interest-bearing bank borrowing HEIRITER - 50,000
Net cash (outflow) inflow Be OR) mAEHE (123,939) 573,559
Current ratio et & 6.1 5.0
Quick ratio RB) L E 5.2 4.4

With our strong financial background upon Listing on the Stock
Exchange, we expect we will have sufficient cash to cover future
capital expenditure requirements.

BRASEEBRRT EMHRRMHEES B
HAEBSHE RWR T ARN BRONEARR
i o

REEEERERAT 28 —FTETN\FH



Management Discussion and Analysis

e =Ry

il

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

ASSOCIATES

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal of any subsidiaries

and associated companies for the year ended 31st July 2008.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds raised from the international offering received by

the Company was approximately HK$635 million.

The usage of net proceeds until 31st July 2008 are as follows:

X
.

=
A

h1]

%ﬁ&&%%%@ﬂ&%

AKEERE-FTE\ELA=T-ALEE
POt 18 K MO S 5 A (T B 2 ) BB 2

Ejo

FREFMIEAR

ARBNERBRETEEHERBFEY

635,000,000/8 7T °

HE_ZZN\FLA=1+—H  FEFEEHE

EERTIIRE

Particular Planned amount Utilised amount
HE HK$ million HK$ million
sHEIAR 2EAR
BEET BEER
Expansion of production facilites for ~ &7 B E AL E R 468 (120)
silicone rubber based products
Upgrade and expansion of upstream &7t M7 _Hf A E R 56 -
production facilities
Strengthening research and PIIEE R 4= 39 ®)
development capabilities
Implementation of resources BITERBRE RS 22 (1)
planning system
General working capital —REEES 50 (50)
Total Bt 635 a77)

The remaining net proceeds have been deposited on short-term
basis in licensed financial institutions in Hong Kong and the

PRC.

PSSR F R R E T N BB S Bl #F h

BHIBIER IR -
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B IR E R B AT

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND GEARING
RATIO

As at 31st July 2007, the amount of bank borrowing due within
one year was HK$50 million. The amount has been fully repaid
during the year,

As at 31st July 2007 and 2008, the Group had no long-term
debts.

As at 31st July 2008, the gearing ratio, representing interest bearing
bank borrowing to total equity, was 0% (2007: 4.9%).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS,
CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES ON
ASSETS

Capital commitments contracted by the Group but not yet provided
for in the consolidated financial statements as at 31st July 2008
were approximately HK$13.2 million, which was mainly related to
the expansion of production capacity in Dongguan and Huzhou in
the PRC. Such capital commitments will be financed by the net
proceeds from the international offering.

As at 31st July 2008, the Group had no material contingent liabilities
and the Group’s assets were free from any charge.

HUMAN RESOURCES AND
REMUNERATION POLICIES

As the Group is committed to expand our production capacity
and develop high value-added products, such as mobile phone
keypads, experienced workers, engineers and professionals are the
most important assets to the Group. We offer on-the-job training
and encourage staff to attend continuous professional training in
order to update their skills and knowledge.

EXGERREERSRBILEER

RZZBEE+FLA=Z+—H R—FRIEHH
$R1T1E FA50,000,00058 7T ° im@aéiai\u
B -

F:T?tﬁﬁ_Yyﬂitﬂ +—HB =K
SEWERRER -

R-ZEEZNFLA=+—H BEAGBLE
(BRRTERLEZLRE) A% (ZEZ+
F:4.9%) °

%$ﬁ%*ﬁﬁ$ﬁ&ﬁ§ﬁ

RZZENFLA=Z+—HB AEBEFTH
BARGEMBRRBEENERNEAENA
13,200,000 7T + £ 2 BiFE 7 A B HR 5L KA M
HERENER - BREAAER ARG
B EFREAA -

RZFZNFLA=1+—H AEEAEEKX
SRBE BAKRENEETEREEANE
ﬁo

ANE TR R H R

HAAEER N ERERALRAESIEEE
o PIAnF RS - MSEELBRNTA T2
AR BEEATHARENREZEE - TR
HERE - YEE T2 MFEEEEI
PASEHE 1 S5 Y FBE L AR
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We offer competitive remuneration package, including quality
staff quarters, trainings, medical, insurance coverage and
retirement benefits, to all employees in Hong Kong and in the
PRC. As at 31st July 2008, the Group has 9,097 permanent
and temporary employees (2007: 10,204). The total salaries and
related costs (excluding directors’ emoluments) for the year ended
31st July 2008 amounted to approximately HK$227.0 million (2007
HK$1565.8 million).

The Group adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme on
16th May 2007 for the purpose of recognition of employees’
contribution before the Listing. As at 31st July 2008, 7,425,000
share options were still outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, of which 5,695,000 options are held by employees of
the Group. The Company also adopted a Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 16th May 2007. No option has been granted under
the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme.

BMAEERTREAEEESREART I0H
BrZz BIEEENETRES « HFil - BE
R SR IKGER) - R ZEENFLA=1+—H
CAREEASRER 2B REREBS0974

Z 2 ET 4+ F:10204% ) B E =
—ZEENFLA=Z+—HLEFE HFER
EARARIBB(TEEESEMNS)NA
227,000,000/ 7T ZFZA4F 1 155,800,00087T) ©

AEER —ZTLFRAHRBRNER AR
ERRERHERTE) - UEEER LRI ERIRR
RBE - R_FTTN\FLA=1—H BRAME
& R RB A AT BITR T A 7,425,00017 fE AUAE i
RITE - EA5,595,0000 B Em A LB E R
A - ARASR-_FETLFAATNBRAE
RAFRBEERBEETE - BRARBERBKR
RERT R ARIR HEATRB A -

Annual Report 2008 31 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

=
Lg
=
L
(o=
Ll
=
<]
o
oc
S
o



INNOVATIVE
BRINGING CREATIVE IDE
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES TO O

L T
S5TAIE  EAR
RGN EE RS




Corporate Governance Report
PEERME
Shareholders

e

l

Board of Directors

)

Company Secretary
NAEME
l n l l l
: : Nomination Remuneration Compliance Executive
Aglg%m;niee Committee Committee Committee Committee
= = ae = = ~— =
AESE REEES FMEEE EHEES MITEES
External Auditor
HNEEAZELAD
Preliminary Remark in the Group's Corporate Governance AEBMTEE BB R L mi
Practices
e M Kirk Yang was appointed as the Executive Director e BEBEER-ZZNFHAEZME
N N [

and Chief Financial Officer in April 2008 RPTESRYBRE S
e Formal Corporate Governance Guideline was established e  ARRBHRIIERATEERIES %

by the Company %
e Each of the Executive Directors of the Company has e  AREBREWTEFCHREEL TN o

attained at least 10 hours continuing professional Rr B35 48 5 2251 R E

training =
e The role of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer was e EXVCOERRMEEIFERITHER §

reviewed and formalized by the Board HBE
e The Compliance Committee reviewed regular reports on e ESREEREFERLASEEMWER

the status of control and compliance across the Group MEaHRERTE RS

quarterly

Annual Report 2008 33 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited



Corporate Governance Report

TERERRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

During the year, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company
has adopted its own code on corporate governance practices
(“the CG Code”) which is not less than the code provisions as set
out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the "HKEX
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules of Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”). The Company has applied all the principles
in the HKEX Code.

This report is prepared with reference to the HKEX Code throughout
the year, the Group has complied with the provision set out in
HKEX Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the directors (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all directors of the Company (the “Directors”),
the Company confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the
year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board of the Company comprises six Executive Directors and
three Independent Non-executive Directors. The function of the
Board is to guide the management to ensure the interests of the
shareholders of the Company are safeguarded.

FRARPEFE((EFSHERMEDLE
EREANTA(EEERTA) - XNER
EEBARIMABRAAESZ LRI EH
AN DM 8+ P E B EIR B AR T RI(TE
RSP #EIN TR - ARTIEHRAE
ZFASFRIARATBIRA

ARETIRBBRPTAIMARS - AEBNF
W—EESTBRFTTRIBSIRI RS -

EENESFRS

AR AE RN LT AR RIPY 8% + PratiR 2 <7 Rl
REBESTETEFRZNRTTRI(REST
) - RRAARBZREE([EF DIELETE
EHR  ARAAHERBRENFA—BETRE
STRIFTEUR E IR 2E

EEg

EEENAEK
AAREERAABRTEER=BHUIEH
TEFMERK - EFRNBE RS GERERR
AR RRE A 2 Z FURAE -
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The current Board members for the year ended 31st July 2008
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Ih Chen (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kirk Yang (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Lin Hung-Ming

Mr. Wong Tak Leung

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen
Mr. Hsieh Yu
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

The biographical details of all Directors and the relationships
among them are set out in the “Directors and Senior Management
Profile” on pages 8 to 13 of this annual report and the Company’s
website. Save as disclosed in the section of “Directors and Senior
Management Profile”, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having sound industry knowledge, extensive corporate and
strategic planning experience and/or expertise relevant to the
business of the Group. All Executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise
to the Company.

Executive Directors

E_TTN\FLA=+-HILFE EFg
BIEKER -

BITES
EBRAE ()
REBEE(TTHMAE)
IBIE IR A (BT B 40 2)
BRI S
HiERSLE

HER S

BYFHTES
BRI
Bk
B

PIEESHNEREFBRNE 2HNBERIERA
FHRFCEEZFICAEEZNSREERARMY
MIRARR R - [RIEERSREEABRY
MI—EMREES MEEFHREEENKE
BAERFS - A% KRS EMEALIEH
FR1% -

EEgNNERAMK MEBREFHNAE
BRI EXRBHABADITENH - EEND
ERREARBIERE,REPIRIN - FIAERT
ERERBYFPITEFIRR/AARIHRER
850 b BPIRT -

HITES
Position Current Function/Experience
B BRI 5%
Huang Sheng-Shun Executive Director e development of corporate operation and
= oE and Chairman strategies
WITESFHEF hELEBEREBNER
Wu Ih Chen Executive Director and e marketing, administration and financial planning
REH Chief Executive Officer TTEEHEE - THRERERIMERE

HITESRITRAER
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Position
Bz

Current Function/Experience

BAIRE 58

Kirk Yang
HIER

Wong Tak Leung

BRER

Lin Hung-Ming
MREA

Huang Te-Wei
=R

Executive Director and
Chief Financial Officer
HITE SR FBH

Executive Director
and Deputy General
Manager

ﬂﬂ%%%ﬂ%%

Executive Director
and Research &
Development Director

WITEERMAERNTE

Executive Director and
General Manager

MITESRAKE

overseeing the areas of financial control and
accounting, treasury, corporate finance,
investment, merger and acquisition, public
relations and institutional investors relations of
the Group.

&$$%lm%%¢ﬂ& 5F o BRS  RERES -
®E SO  AHEARIEEREERER
BHE

sales and marketing

HERITHER

research and development
7 K ER

daily operation of the Group and strategic planning

AEBEW AT EERRERS

overseeing the Group’s compliance and internal
control matters

EEAEENERRAMERER

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BIFHITES

Yeung Chi Tat
BEE

Chuang Hong-Jen
BRI

Hsieh Yu

A

Independence! Experience/Skill

S e BRE

v auditing, corporate restructuring and corporate financial services
Tt - bEEARCERERS

v financial and investment
M RIRE

v legal and compliance
FRRAR

Note 1: All Independent Non-executive Directors are free from any business — ffi£71 : BB IENITE SRS R (E M £ LR

and relationships that could materially interference with the exercise

their independent judgement.

AR B E T TR H AR S I -
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of the Chairman, Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, and the Chief
Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Mr. Wu Ih Chen are segregated in order
to ensure a clear distinction between the Chairman’s and the CEO's
responsibilities. This also allows a balance of power between
the Board and the management of the Group, and ensures their
independence and accountability.

The Chairman focuses on the Group’s business and strategic
matters to ensure the Board is operated effectively. In addition,
the Chairman will lead the Board to establish good corporate
governance practices and procedures for the Group.

The CEO is responsible for the marketing, administration and
financial planning and to ensure the approved Group’s strategies
are effectively implemented to achieve the goals of the Group.

Functions of the Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for the oversight of the management of
the Company’'s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing
long-term shareholder’s value, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. The Board has the following main duties:

° determine all the corporate matters;

° responsible for the management, direction and supervision
of the businesses of the Group; and

° responsible to ensure the effectiveness on Group’s financial
reporting and compliance.

The Board has matters reserved for its decisions and these
include:

° the Group’s long-term strategy;

° major capital projects, acquisitions or divestments;

° internal control and risk management; and

° annual and half-yearly financial results and shareholder
communications.

FRRITHAR

REBERERTREA2METRRXARE
TREEBEERTRAR(TTHRER DRE
HMEERBMMBEAFRD  BAERER
HITHARNEERES D - LTTEFTENR
AEBERE BRI E  BERESNEL
M RREE M -

TREHANAE B XS LRI E I AERE
FERMEE - I TRBEIREFTER/N
KERTRINEEERATRREF

TRERAETHERE 1
B - AR EB B A S
B EMAE -

THEIE M B 5 R
BEARUBITT - BA

EEENRE
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The Board delegates the authority and responsibility forimplementing
day-to-day operations, business strategies and management of the
Group’s businesses to the Executive Directors, senior management
and certain specific responsibilities to the Board committees.

When the Board delegates aspects of its management and
administration functions to the management, it has given clear
directions as to the powers of management, in particular, with
respect to the circumstances. While allowing management
substantial autonomy to run and develop the business, the Board
plays a key role in structuring and monitoring the reporting systems
and internal controls. The composition, functions of each Board
committee and their major role and function are described below.
The final decision still rests with the Board unless otherwise provide
for in the terms of reference of relevant committees.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills and
business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgment on issues of strategy, performance and risk through
their contribution to Board meetings and to the Board’'s committee
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three Independent Non-executive Directors, one
of them have appropriate professional qualifications in accounting
or related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of its Independent Non-
executive Directors the written confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company, based
on such confirmation, considers Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen, Mr. Yeung
Chi Tat and Mr. Hsieh Yu to be independent.

EXeRBETHRZE EBRBIAKEE
BEENRELEEZRGAHTES ST
BE YHETHEEERKTEZLZES -

EEFEREERTRYETANENERT
EHRER CERENBEEEENEN BT
BHTEIES] - BRI REMRIER THE1THED -
HAAFERBER D BIAMATIE ML K3
RER  HEFSERBRERHRFEER
MEESTEDDEHERAE SEEEZES
FIMERK - BB REETRERRBEHINWT -
BOFERZEemBREESBRE - BRIE
EENRBRIERRE -

BYFITES

JEITE R AR RS T EORM R ES

5 - BE I RAESERIRERZARE
CHREARSEE - R RAMRIE BT o

BiE EWRBIEI10MIE - ZBBIIFMITE
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Directors’ Appointment, Re-election and
Removal

Each of Executive Directors (except Mr. Kirk Yang) has entered into
a service contract with the Company for a period of three years
commencing from 16th May 2007, subject to a termination by
giving not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Mr. Kirk Yang joined the Group as an Executive Director and chief
financial officer on 18th April 2008. He has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from 18th April 2008, subject to a termination by either party giving
not less than 3 months’ prior written notice.

Each of Independent Non-executive Directors has entered into a
new formal appointment letter with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 16th May 2008, subject to a termination by
either party giving not less than one month’s prior written notice.

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, all
Directors (including Executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors) are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Board Meetings and Board Practices

The Board has scheduled to meet at least four times a year, and
the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-level
decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate in
discussing the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meeting and
each Director may request to include any matters in the agenda.
Generally, at least 14 days notice is given for the regular meetings
by the Company. All substantive agenda items have comprehensive
briefing papers, which are circulated at least 3 days before each
Board meeting.
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The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to Directors prior to the meetings of the Board to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will
not dealt with the matter by way of written resolution or by a
Board committee (except if that Board committee was specifically
established for such purpose). The Independent Non-executive
Director with no material interest in the matter will attend the meeting
to dealt with the matter if it is considered appropriate. Other than
the exception allowed under the Listing Rules, any Director who
or whose associates have any material interest in any proposed
Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum in the relevant
Board meeting or no vote for the Board resolutions.

All the Board committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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The following table shows the number of and the attendance records
of the regular Board meetings held during the year 2007/2008:

TRETR-_ZZLF /T N\FFELH
THEESeZNEE REFELE

Directors’ Attendance

EESHERE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun =R A 12/12
Mr. Wu Ih Chen REWLE 12/12
Mr. Kirk Yang* S FERB I &> 3/3
Mr. Lin Hung-Ming MRBRSE A& 11/12
Mr. Wong Tak Leung =HERLE 10/12
Mr. Huang Te-Wel BB A 12/12
Independent Non- BUFHTEE

executive Directors
Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen HRCEE 9/12
Mr. Hsieh Yu Bk Pt 11/12
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat HEESRE 11/12
* Mr. Kirk Yang was appointed as the Executive Director of the — * BEBLTER-_ZEENELWAE+/N\HE

Company on 18th April 2008.

Access to Information

The management will provide the Board with appropriate and
sufficient information through financial reports, business and
operational reports and budget statements in a timely manner to
keep them informed the latest development of the Company.

The Board members have the right to access to the Group’s
information and other matters either from the Company Secretary
or the CEOQO.

Continuing Professional Development

The Company has arranged for training courses to each of the
Executive Directors to enhance their skills and to keep up with
the updated developments in applicable legal and regulatory.
Any Director may request the Company to provide independent
professional advice at the expense of the Company to discharge
his duties to the Company.

RER/RBRRBATES -

BAREH
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Introduction tailored kit will be given to newly appointed Director to his
individual needs. This includes meetings with senior management to
enable them to have better understanding of the Group’s business
and strategy and the key risks and issues.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

The Company has arranged Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities
insurance for all the Directors and the senior management of the
Company for the year 2008/2009. The insurance covers them
against costs, charges, expenses and liabilities incurred arising
out of the corporate activities.

BOARD COMMITTEES

There are five Board committee made up of the majority of
Independent Non-executive Directors. The principal committees
of the Board are the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Compliance Committee and Executive
Committee, details of which are as follows:

Audit Remuneration
Committee

4#MzEe  REZRE

Committee

EVZES

Huang Sheng-Shun i
Chuang Hong-Jen HRE @)
Hsieh Yu At @)
Yeung Chi Tat i @)
Huang Te-Wei BER
Chan Ol Fat RE%
Wu I Chen REH
Wu Pei Min RIME

FETESEERTHAEBEASEOEN S
R SHEASRTEESE  ARRHENAKE
EHEBRER  URHIERRENELE
RATHE o

EENRERBENEERR

R-BZNF/—ZZNGFFE  ARFER
HIBEE SR ERELHESRSABE
MEERR - ZERBRALEEH EPAELR
KA B - X REERHERE -

EXZET

hAEEZREERMABOBUIFNTESH
K- ETREFLBERERERES  FMEZE
€ REZBE SRZBERBITRES
HEHIMT

Committee membership
ZB8R%E

Executive
Committee

#1REE

Nomination
Committee

Compliance
Committee

4BEEE

O @)
O O
O O
O O (@)
O @)
O (@)
@)
©)

A copy of each committee’s terms of reference is available from
the company secretary of the Company.

BEZEeNBEREEAR MAQRNAR]
WERE
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 16th May 2007 and
comprises three members, all are Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Chuang Hong-
Jen and Mr. Hsieh Yu. During the year, the role of the members
remain unchanged. The Chief Financial Officer and Qualified
Accountant have attended meetings by invitation.

The audit committee met three times during the year, the attendance
of the committee members are shown as following table:

Yeung Chi Tat T
Chuang Hong-Jen R
Hsieh Yu Bk

BEREES

ERZEEN _TELFRATNEKYL ' #
—BAREMHEK - f&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ#iﬂﬁ%% - Bl
BEERE(ER) HECHRERIEELE -
FA - RENBERFTE - YHRILAE
RETEERLFEES

ERZEENFTARAARAZRES:  TRERZ
ZEGKERLFELHE

Attendance/Total Committee Meetings

B TEERREH

3/3
2/3
3/3

The Audit Committee’s responsibilities include the following:

o the integrity of financial reports;

° the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management system; and

° the independence of the external auditors.

Further details on the work of the Audit Committee for the year
2007/2008 can be found under “Audit Committee Report”.

ERZBENBESENT -

o HIBMEMTEM

e AEHEMAMEZELREBEERSFNE
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Remuneration Committee

The members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat (Chairman), Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen and Mr. Hsieh Yu. Committee
members’ attendance are as follows:

The remuneration committee met three times during the year, the
attendance of the committee members are shown as following
table:

FWEEg
HHEBENEABEERE(ER)  BEC
S RBM L - EERKEHELENT -

FMZBERFRAMZAER  TRERZ
ZEERBMHFELE -

Attendance/Total Committee Meetings

HELEEEEEHEH

Yeung Chi Tat HEE
Chuang Hong-Jen R
Hsieh Yu Eki)

3/3
1/3
3/3

The responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include the
following:

° determine on behalf of Board, the Group'’s remuneration policy
for the Executive Directors and the senior management team
of the Company;

° consider and advise on the terms of any contract to be
offered to a director; and

° monitor the remuneration package of senior management
team and make recommendation.

Further information on the Remuneration Committee’s activities is
contained in “Remuneration Committee Report”.

FHZEEeMBESR™WT
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, all are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yeung Chi Tat
(Chairman), Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen and Mr. Hsieh Yu.

The key objective of the Nomination Committee is to ensure the
Board comprises individuals with requisite skills, experience, so

that it is effective in discharging its responsibilities.

Attendance at Nomination Committee Meeting is as follows:

Yeung Chi Tat T
Chuang Hong-Jen R
Hsieh Yu A

REZEE
REZRRH-AMBEN  REYBBIHE
PITES - MBRERE(ER)  BRCKE
RS -

REZBENTIZRRNEREETSHAERM
TR AR ERAER - ERBATHE

REZBEEZMHFLEET

Attendance/Total Committee Meetings

B ZEESREH

2/2
1/2
2/2

The criteria and the nomination procedures of a new Director are
set out herein below;

a)  Criteria for prospective candidates for nomination

i) the independence in case of an Independent Non-
executive Director; and

ii) the skill, knowledge, working experience, the ability to the
carry out the duties of a Director of the Company.

D)  Process to nominate a prospective candidate

qualified director candidates will be identified by referral
or intermediary agencies;

i, an interview will be conducted with the prospective
candidate;

ii.  the remuneration package of the prospective candidate
will be assessed by the Remuneration Committee;

REMEZNERLEFEHIIAT

a)  REAREEEARER
) BUMUNABLIFRITES): &
i) EITAREERBIGAE M -
A THEERR 820 -
b) REEREANEF
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iv.  a Board meeting will be convened to consider and,
if thought fit to approve the appointment of the new
director;

V. an orientation will be provided by the Company for
the new director so that he/she fully understands
the background and the business activities of the
Company;

Vi, Memorandum on the Duties and Responsibilities of a
Director of a Company listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) prepared by an
external lawyer will be provided to the new director.

The appointment of Mr. Kick Yang had been undergone the above
process.

Nomination Committee Activities during the year

Significant matters discussed by the Nomination Committee are
summarized as follows:

° The Nomination Committee were involved in the assessment
the appointment of Mr. Kirk Yang as an Executive Director
and chief financial officer before a recommendation was
made to the Board. Other Non-executive Directors and
senior management may be invited to attend the meeting, if
necessary. Full Board Meeting was conducted to consider
the recommendation made by the Nomination Committee.

° The Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure, size
and composition of the Board, including the balance of
skills, knowledge and experience and independence of the
Non-executive Directors and made recommendation to the
Board accordingly.

Compliance Committee

The Compliance Committee currently comprises Mr. Yeung Chi
Tat (Chairman), Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, Mr. Huang Te-Wei and
Mr. Chan Oi Fat.

v. AREFSE TREMNBHEZR
EREES :

v.  ARBRFEEFREABEI
BEFM THRARRNE R MEH
EEIE

vi. HTEFHBERHAIMNERMERZ
FEEMARXHMERRA(HAR
PR EMRARZESEBERAEEAX

REGEBELTIRE A2 ETT -

REZEEFAIER
REZESWWONEAFEBMRAT -

s MESSRIZILGEBELE/MITE
ERUBEBEA REZEER2HE
Az MARE  HMFRITEERS
REEERERLFESHS HERS
ZESFENERRSAREBESS

@ o
=

REZBECEHEZESTENRE
MR LA (BIERRE - ME R ERED
BB IERITESHIBILE) - WA
EEgROARRE -

A
EREZEBSRABTERE(ER) - &R
S BEESAERRE BT EHEK -
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Mr. Leung Siu Hong ceased as a member of the Compliance
Committee and Mr. Chan Oi Fat was elected a member of
Compliance Committee, all with effect as of 10th January 2008.

The overall responsibility of the Compliance Committee is to ensure
that the Group comply with all the relevant rules, laws and regulation
as set in different jurisdiction and Listing Rules of Hong Kong.

Compliance Committee Activities during the year

The Compliance Committee met four times during the year. The
major activities were undertaken by the Committee:

° oversee the financial, legal, statutory and listing requirement,
internal control and corporate governance practices of the
Group;

° adopt the tailor made Corporate Governance Policy;

° establish Corporate Disclosure Policy and Guideline on Price-
sensitive information; and

° consider the appointment of external consultants where
appropriate.

Executive Committee

An executive committee was established on 3rd September
2007 with specific written terms of reference and comprises five
members, by whom three are Executive Directors, namely Mr.
Huang Sheng-Shun, Mr. Wu Ih Chen, Mr. Huang Te-Wei, Mr. Chan
Oi Fat and Ms. Wu Pei Min.

The Executive Committee is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Group's businesses, the overall financial
performance of the Group in fulfllment of strategy, plans and
budgets and the Group capital expenditures as defined in the
terms of reference.

The Executive Committee reports on these topics on its own
conclusions and recommendation to the full Board.

REFERETBEIARZESGHKE - MR
ERLLERERCHZEEGKE  MEAN

—ZE\F—A+AEEN -

EREZESNEBEBRE DERASEETHN
TRRDEEERLEE EMRAUNAAERR
A SERIREM -

EHREEEFAREE

ERZEENFANEHMOAEH  TESETT
MEREEA

e EERMK EE ATBRKLETE
Ko ARAKENABEZEREXRER
B

o RMESMRNEEEREEK

o HEBNBRANBEILLERBEBRRNIE
5 R

o WERE - EEZ(EIMNEEM -

HTRES
PITEEEN - TLLFNAZERYT - UE
EFABAERE WA AR EAR  ER=
ERRPTEF(AEBRLE REMKLE -
HEBEE) - WEHEERITE/ME -

HITZERREARBERENEBER - IR
AEENEBMBRAADEERE 8K
BEURASENEARRS - FERBESLE

HITZEE N LHREREBR B SEREE
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ and Auditors’ Acknowledgement

The Audit Committee and the Board have reviewed the Company’s
financial statements for the year ended 31st July 2008. The Directors
acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts and
presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Company’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors
are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the auditors’ report on the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st July 2008.

Auditors’ Remuneration

During the year, KPMG resigned as one of joint auditors on
22nd July 2008. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited remained as the
Company’s sole external auditors until the conclusion of next annual
general meeting.

During the year ended 31st July 2008, the remuneration paid/
payable to the auditors, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and its
affiliates in respect of their audit and non-audit services was as
follows:

Type of Services

PR %5 28 5!

Audit services FiT IR
Non-audit services IEEFTARTS
Taxation advisory services T RE S AR TS
Other advisory services B A ] AR 7
Total: st

LR Ty
EERABET R AR

BERZEGNEFZSEERLARAHE
“EENFLA=T - HIEFENTBERE -
EEARBFEAETHRERE RRUARFIMNE
B RRRFTRIRE9E - JFW L2 @A
e EFRLTAEBEAREC AR AFFEL LR S
BXEELARNEMHERLS MEMEARTH

EXPM(EER) S EBHER D RHARRK
FEEREBEE_TT/\FLA=Z+—RALFE
AP RANZBERE PR HRERET -

2 B 2 B

FR - EFHEFMEBAN_FTENFLA
“T-RRERBFEREAEN 2 — o FXF M
(BER)GHMEBMBERARBERALT
ME—IMNEZHE EE T —ERRBFRSHE
= o

HE_TZN\F+LA=1+T—BIEFER &
BN A(EE) BMEFMBERAR K
HEBARNE RIERARBEN BT
LA RO F BN T

2008
—2BNE

HK$’000
FET

720

73
310

1,103
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group's particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed,
and by their nature can only provide reasonable, but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Company have engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
("“SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct a annual review of the effectiveness
of the internal control systems of the Group, covering all material
controls, including financial, operation, compliance controls, etc.
For the year, SHINEWING Risk has confirmed in its assessment
report that the internal control systems of the Group operate
satisfactory and there is no material discrepancies which has to be
brought to the attention of the Board or the shareholders.

According to the internal control report, the Audit Committee
satisfied with the internal control systems of the Company and
no material deficiencies has been found on the internal control
systems.

To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, control
department is established to provide day-to-day management
of the compliance and control of the Group in order to eliminate
risks of failure of operational systems and the achievement of the
Company’s objectives. The control department is currently headed
pby Mr. Huang Te-Wei, the Executive Director, and it reports directly
to the Board.

A

EEEATARENMERRARNERE - A
MEERARE R EARENREREMERN
HEGo R  EEREEEMR - SRR
MR RERIREAEMIFBRERE -

AFACRYRFREEEREBAEMARE
B EHEATH - BFEER SRS N
RARER R AMOPABEERRR M - A

ENEEREEESR B ENEIT AR
ES

AAREREEKAREREEBRAR(E
KA DHERNAEENANBEZERFTHBL
METFER  EPREMAERER 8
B REREHRERSE - ERKIREER
REENAEREPHER - HRAKEN A
ERZREFERTIME  AUETHEANRE
BHRESRESTSIRENET -

BENSERRENER BREEERE
DEMNBER RS - L@EREERHER
EREAAMEATE -

RTE-FIEAEENATEZERS - AR
AR BRI EAREA R NERER
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B R EERZERIAR QRN BT o ESIERRFIIRE
HATESEREALERE  ERAEESE
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Control department will conduct meeting regularly and work closely
with SHINEWING Risk to monitor the internal control system within
the Group. In addition, they will carry out assessment in relation to
the establishment of new company or entity and new product of
the Company. To enhance the knowledge of relevant staffs of the
Group, training will be provided to them in the matter of relevant
rules and applicable laws as when appropriate.

The Board is satisfied that the Group have complied with the code
provision on internal control as set out in the listing rules.

Risk Management

In order to provide reasonable assurance to achieve our business
objectives, the management establish risk management framework
{0 assess the risk that may result in material impact on the company’s
business. The risk management framework are illustrated in the
following diagram:

Process

BE

risk identification, risk assessment
control assessment

Policy
124

and responsed to

risks are identified, assessed

SRR EMAREE
éf’EMEﬁﬁxﬁﬁlE’]W*ﬁﬁhm;b IEESN - 18
FRBLFT A B E R AR AN EME
1TRHE - %TiEK%IifEEQE\IE’UﬂE&% i
SRS ARRRNEREE R SRS
Al o

I B {E KI5 B )

SR EMNAEE—EHTHR L RAIA
BRI -

e rg =g

BIRHEENREBENEIEBHER  E1EE
ByuEREIER T%LMHET FEIRN/NEIEY
EXEAXENAR - RRERRBEANT
& :

Accountabilities

BE

all senior management are
responsible for risk management

RIRTER - MR - il FASREREAR
I%‘J HJHE E${$\Eﬁ§¥¢@|§ﬁ“ J—LKA B 1@
Risk management Framework
FEkEEEE
. Monitoring and Development
R t Assurance
A ESRYE iy

the senior mangement monitors the risk
process and supports and
develops the framework

EREREERRERBRE

xENERRE

Reporting covers the impact,
effectiveness of control measures to
deal with the risk
PR B
FEE R E

JR=

H s iR
B
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The major risk factors assessed by the Group are listed as

follows:
Risk Factors Risks
B B R & G0
Strategic ° The Company may not able

KB to identify new technologies
AR E A B AR BIFT R
o The global economic downturn
can have a harmful impacts

on the business

PHREERITEER

° The company’s strategic plan

may not carry effectively
ZNGIE0E S R

BREETT
Operational o Production risk
®E A EE IR

o Cost structure

DFNT

° Raw material sourcing

[RERHEREE

Financial o Exchange rate fluctuation

B3 P % Ep

° Greglit Rating
EEFR

o Interest rate changes
kL)

Compliance o Law and regulations liabilities
el FEEREEERE

AEBFGENTIZRBRRINNT

Risk Management
BBy E

The Company continues to strengthen the
Research & Development

AR B HEAE hnos A 3%

The Company continues to explore new
pusiness opportunity by expanding its
activities geographically
gﬂﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁvﬁﬁﬁ%%
=] *%

The management is monitoring the progress
of strategic plan and modify the plan from

time to time
BIEE IF EE R R IR 5T 8 RO 2 I (S
ETEl

The Company has arranged insurance to
cover product liability

RRABELRHRBAREBEREE

The Company will monitor its price

in alignment with macro-economic
developments and general market trends
RATEEERER - ARRE RBLERE
ERERBTISBE

The Company aims to maintain long-terms
business relationship with suppliers to
acquire raw materials

ARFH B R BHEAERRIRD
BAR - DAERIS R

The Company adopts hedging policy to
minimise exchange rate risks

AR AEREREDREER - DARE E 2 @ f
The Company continues to strengthen its
relationship with institutional investors

AR BB ISR EREIREERIER

The Company adopts treasury policy to
minimize financing charges and interest risk
RABERMEREER - LURERLE & A

R ) 2R [ g

The Company adopts policy to seek legal
advices

ARBRMERR - SFEREER
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Please refer to the Audit Committee Report for the Audit Committee’s
activities during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility
Environmental Protection and Safety Measures

To support the good environment, the Group continues to pursue a
proactive policy in environmental protection and have implemented
a series of environmental protection practices, details of which
are as follows:

° Dongguan Ta Yang factory and Huzhou factory obtained
ISO 4001;

° Install a discharge and sedimentation tank in our plants to
treat domestic sewage before discharging to the sewage
drains in the neighbourhood;

° Install noise-barriers in our electricity general rooms and in
the plants with air compression equipment respectively;

° we have ventilating ducts to collect exhausted gases
generated during production processes before emitting to
the atmosphere.

Save for the above, the Group also organizes the old clothes
donation programe twice a year. The collected old clothes will be
donated to various charity organizations.

In addition, the Group emphazes on safe production measures.
These measures include safely tips which set out certain guidelines
on occupational safety such as safely production measures and
procedures for handling emergency. In order to promote the
safety awareness, the Group also organizes induction training
and occupational safety training for our staff. The Group has
regularly check on equipment to ensure the staff is working at
safety place.

BRAEZZESNTAMNEDY  BRHERZ
BEgfE o

TEMHEEME

RIEBRERZTEERE
BYBRERITIRE  AEBEEHTEGS
MIRBRE R Ko A—RYIRBRE
BHE  FEIBAT ¢

s REXFEBERHAMEBENF

ISO 4001

o KAGHEREREEVATTRE - AR BE
BUS/KERI RS KRATRIEE A5
K s

o EARREIMNEBEERERER RBERERNR
EoRIEBERERE

s ARAREABRABAENKRELEEBRRE
RELNER - ARBHHPIN

B EXPRtESL - AEB I BFRRRAER
BEETE - FIRENEXRERE T TRAEE

o

il

BEON - REBMANEITLE R EERE - BET
BREMLER BT LEEREIEEER
SEMNEFEETRELEES - REHX
2EH - AKETSETRRAFIIIREBZE
Z2IIR - AEEERRERE - ABRET
EZE2RETTIE-
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Community Involvement

During the year, the Group provides support
to charitable organizations by giving donation
for Sichuan earthquake, Huzhou Civil Military
Fire Community (ER K2 EHEM®), &
A B R ZEERT and Community Chest to
help the less fortunate.

In order to live up to our spirit of facilitating partnership development
and mutual benefits, the Group jointly organized the “Silicone
Product Design Competition” with the Hong Kong Design Institute,
a member of The Vocational Training Council, in April 2008.
Save for awarding sponsorship to the participated students with
excellent performance, we also invited the prestigious designer
Mr. Pang Chi Kong, Winnif, Chairman of the Hong Kong Designer
Association, to be the judge of the competition and interact with
the design students. Such activity provided students with an
opportunity of practical training and laid down better foundation
for thelr future prospect in professional design.

AERNRENRLT
Ta Yang Geoup Hokdings Limited

el

FR - AREBEBRN - REEH
BIRHEY  BRUIME - ER
HEEHREE - ALRIARE
Dk nmsE  NEBREAL -

Mr: Kirk Yang (rnight) received Certificate of Merit
of the Community Chest from wire of HKSAR
Chief Executive.

BIEE A L (A TEF B AN B L e WA ©

—TT)N\FMA  ARERFREESAIEER
BRREN - EREIIRBE THEENERE
BRamTABYRBERRLE] - KRR
HESSTRRBENSESLI  KEEH
ARG ZE LEECREBT BRI
SXF)ELHE  BRRERFEXRSLME
B RUEBEBERIKE  BENREHRS
BERER FEFEENRLR -

The Group promote creative aesign in siicone proalct through “Silcone Froalict Design
Competition " with the Hong Kong Design hstiture.

R E B Z T F B B E BB
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Employment and Social Affairs

The Group places emphasis to retain
talent staff by providing annual bonus
and annual dinner in Chinese Lunar Year.
Besides, the Group organizes basketball
and Tug-of-war sports competition
in October each year to promote the
mutual cooperation and understanding
among the staff. There are also corporate
orientation programmes to enable the
mainland staff to better understand the
Group’s culture.,

INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER
RELATIONS

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining clear, timely
and effective communication with shareholders of the Company and
investors. The Board also recognizes that effective communication
with investors is the key to establish investor confidence and
to attract new investors. Therefore, the Group is committed to
maintaining high degree of transparency to ensure the investors and
the shareholders are receiving accurate, clear, comprehensive and
timely information of the Group via the publication of annual reports,
interim reports, press announcements, and also the Company’s
website at www.tayang.com.

The Board continues to maintain regular dialogue with institutional
investors and analysts to keep them informed the Group’s strategy,
operations, management and plans.

The Directors and the committee members are available to answer
the questions through the annual general meeting. External auditors
are also available at the annual general meeting to address
shareholders’ queries. Separate resolutions are proposed at general
meeting on each substantially separate issue.

BERHEER

AEBBBREHFL
AR REHFNE
FHRE BERREAR
THEMEBE L - o
AEEEF+AHE
WEIR R POTES
B UREEMEA
ERB T 2EMRR
o RNEIREBEREE
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H3E e

REERKRRER

EFeWMRARNARRRIZEEEEFSH -
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RERAENBEREEERREERBFR
FHIRE TEASHAMEARQ R AL
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Investors activities during the year:

° Formal presentation of annual results and interim results at
press conference;

° Regular meetings and non-deal roadshows, investor
conferences with institutional investors and analysts by Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer; and

° Investors relations team response the enquiries from
shareholders and analysts.

Shareholders’ Right

The poll voting procedures and right of the shareholders to demand
a poll vote are included in the Company's circular convening a
general meeting. The Chairman of the general meeting explains the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll before putting
a resolution to vote on a show of hands and reveals how many
proxies for and against have been filed in respect of each resolution.
The results of the voting by poll are declared at the meeting and
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively.

Shareholders may put forward their proposals or inquiries to the
Board of the Company by sending their written request to the
Company’s correspondence address in Hong Kong.

FAREENAD

s EZFXBETIAZMELBTLEREFE
B foh HAZRAR

s TTHAHRNMMBAHEKBREERD
MEMEHERMIFERHHE &

s REFMEABEBKLDERRKLRDITENH
fi o

1 (Rl o

Il | TaYang Group Holdings Limited

2007-2008 R HR 2 M

2007-2008 Interim Results

o

R SR H9 R
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ZHT BRRAEMEFEEMBEERIETRRE
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Significant changes in Articles of Association

Save for the amendment to the Memorandum of Association
on 27th November 2007, there is no significant changes to the
Company’s Articles of Association during the year.

Shareholdings Information
As at 31st July 2008
HK$2,000,000,000 divided into

20,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1
each

Authorised Capital

HK$80,000,000 divided into
800,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each

Issued and fully-paid
up capital

The following table summarized the existing shareholding structure
of the Company as at 31st July 2008:

MEBERENEXEH
BoFTLE A=t RETARERA

KIASN - AR R B E IR ST ER
FREHR

R-ZZFZNFLA=1T—H

JEERRAR 2,000,000,000 7T * 9
£20,000,000,0000% & i%
0.1 TTH %D
BEITK 80,000,000/ 7T * A
R RE AR 800,000,000A% & H&0. 158

TEE AR

THREFIARAR-EENFLAS+—BR
AR ¢

Approximate % of issued

Category No. of Shares capital of the Company
Ehl ROEE XATRNERITREANBATI L
Controlling shareholders ERRRENRES 437,340,000 54.67%
and Directors
Strategic Investors (Note 1) REIREE (Mfaz1) 24,180,000 3.02%
Public and connected persons AR K EEEAL
(Note 2) (Htet2) 338,480,000 42.31%
Total F 800,000,000 100%
Notes: K

(1) Strategic investors represented Mitsubishi and Shin-Etsu, which held
12,180,000 and 12,000,000 shares respectively.
(2) 62,866,000 shares out of 338,480,000 shares are held by certain

connected persons of the Group.

(1) HEKREEIED N FE12,180,0008k K
12,000,000 i% {5 ) = 2 R 58 -

(2)  338,480,0008% & 15 9 #962,866,0008% AR 17
HAKEETHEALRA -
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Remuneration Committee Report

S R

This report provides the details of work undertaken by the
Remuneration Committee (the “RC”) during the year.

MEMBERSHIP OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the vyear, the directors who served on the RC were Mr.
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman), Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen and Mr. Hsieh
Yu. All of them are Independent Non-executive Directors.

Members of the RC have no personal interest in the Committee’s
decisions and they have no conflict of interest arising from cross
directorship.

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee met three times during the year. Members’
attendance at the meetings held during the year is set out on
page 44. The chief financial officer, the financial controller and the
external auditors normally attended the meeting by invitation.

ACTIVITIES OF THE REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE

During the vear, the RC met three times and the major business
of those meetings included the following activities:

° approve the remuneration policy of the Group;

° conducting the annual review of basic salaries for all Executive
Directors and making appropriate recommendation to the
Board;

° consider and determine the remuneration package of Chief
Financial Officer who joined the Group in April 2008 and
making appropriate recommendation to the Board;

° recommend the pay adjustment for the year 2008 in
accordance with the remuneration policy of the Group.

raERHAETHEE S ((FMEES)F
MPTHETT TR -
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FALEIFHEZEGNENESTRBTELE
(XF)  BECERERHMEL - RED RS
MIFHITES -

FMEZBENBEZREERRELBELSEA
M BMERERTEEMELTANEE
g‘go

ERRLELR
ZEERFREAHA=RE®E - TR KENE

BHELSENFE44 8 - MTGRE - WIS
RONEZBERE B FEE -

FHEEEED

FR - FMEEEBM=REH  HELEE

B E AT S -

o« BAREMHMEE

©  AMARTEENEAHLRITEER
B WEEF R R RS
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Remuneration Committee Report

FMEE RS

REMUNERATIONPOLICY FORDIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration for the Executive Directors comprises basic
salary, bonus and pensions.

Salary adjustments are made where the RC takes into account
performance of the individual, contribution, responsibilities, and
reference to comparable listed companies in Hong Kong.

The remuneration of Independent Non-executive Director is reviewed
annually with reference to the salary research survey, comparable
companies and market condition.

Apart from basic salary, Executive Directors and employees are
eligible to receive a discretionary bonus taking into account factors
such as market conditions as well as corporate and individual’'s
performance during the year.

In order to attract, retain and motivate talented eligible staff, including
the Directors, the Company has adopted a Share Option Scheme.
The scheme enables the eligible persons to obtain Share interest
in the Company and thus will motivate them to optimize their
continuing contributions to the Group.

ESRSREEBNEFMBR

HWTESNFHERELAFTE  EARENK

FIZE L HFRAER @ZRERA
THWTHERR  BR - BERSEAELEN
B LMARA -

SEBUFRTEFOTH L EFETESR
& - EHEA A RIBRREL R -

BREAFHEIN  BITEFTREEHTASERER
BBIEAL - EBREMSION - FRBELE
ARBRFREME °

AR RBEABESENAERAR(E
RESE)  ARARCSHRMBAETE - 5T EIHE
REBRALAIESARRIB D - #Em
BN EHRE DA REBRAEE -
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The following table illustrates the elements of remuneration of

Executive Directors

FRABRTTEFFHNE EHITE

Remuneration Purpose Delivery Policy Details
rip B TRAT BRFHE
Basic Salary To reflect the market value e (Cash e Reviewed annually
EXF S of each individual Re ST e
RMFE A THTISEE e Monthly e Compare against selected
HA comparable companies
EENELRAA
J:I:ﬁ
e Market practices
mHE G
Discretionary To provide incentives for the delivery of e  Discretionary e Individual performance
Bonus annual goals at the Group, business )15 A AFRER
IS TELL aspects and individual performance e Annual e Market condition
FEEEINER - AREBIE R B e 2
1I/\?‘:25EEI’\]1¢ BiE e The Group performance
ESEIE S
Pension To provide appropriate and e Monthly e MPF Scheme
BIRE competitive post retirement benefits 5A RiEE AT Sl
RHEE REFEFE NHERRERER o
z
Details of the amount of Directors’ remuneration during the year BEZZZENFELA=T—HIEFENESH E
ended 31st July 2008 are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated P& ZEFFIBETI AR A IEREM 17 - i §
financial statements and details of the Share Option Scheme and ~ RIEFT &8I R AR R F R THERENFF BRI =
grant of options by the Company during the year are set out in ~ REEERE MGE P ERERM L0 - g
Report of the Directors and Note 30 to the consolidated financial ?::;
statements. =
Members of the Remuneration Committee MEZE &K E
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman) BEE(LE)
Chuang Hong-Jen HR-
Hsieh Yu EaE
Hong Kong B
11th November 2008 —EEN\F+—HA+—H
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This report provides details of the role of the Audit Committee
(the “AC") and the work it has undertaken during the year. The
main role of the AC mainly assists the Board in discharging
its responsibilities for the integrity of the Company’s financial
statements, the assessment of the effectiveness of the systems of
internal financial controls and monitoring the effectiveness of internal
control and monitoring the effectiveness of external auditors.

The members of the AC during the year were:

Mr. Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen
Mr. Hsieh Yu

MEETINGS AND ATTENDANCE

The Committee met three times during the year. Members’
attendance at the meetings held during the year is set out on
page 43. The chief financial officer, the financial controller and the
external auditors normally attended the meeting by invitation.

SUMMARY OF MAJOR WORK DONE
DURING THE YEAR

During the year, the major works done by AC were summarized
as follows:

® reviewed and pre-approved a wide range of financial reporting
and related matters including interim and annual financial
statements and related announcements including the related
disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the accounting
policies and adopted by the Group prior to the submission to
the Board's approval,

e consider the external auditors’ audit plan and any significant
areas of judgement;

e reviewed the pre-approved internal audit activities of the
Group;

e considered and pre-approved the resignation and re-
appointment of auditors and their audit fee accordingly;

raERHAHEEZZE ([ ZRZEE R
ANMFRMETITENFE - BRZBENE
ZRERHPESTSRTHRE  BRERAR
AR TR - FHEARMBERER
AR - URERAMEENERERER
SMNIBAZ BREDHY B AR

RER - BERZEENKER
BEERE(EZE)

SR kAE
Bk ¥ e

ZREREFELR
ZRENENBR=NEH - FR - KENHE

FHFLEENFEISE - BIFER - MKERE
RONEZBERE B EEE -

FARTENEEIEHRE

FA - BREZEETRNWEZ TEHRANT

ERREAEL - RIBEREREESE
H(BRTHEE2FUBERR)ARBEA
h(EREARESRE) MBHRE LS
BERM BN MBABHRERREFTS
HEFERTE AN SR B ERAN

o EBESNEZBENER G EINLRE2®RE
ERREATENETAERHE
o EHMFALBUASENANMEEE

o ERLBABUBEMERZTREENR
HETER
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e reviewed the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management; and

e reviewed and monitored the external auditor's independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness during the audit process.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The AC has reviewed with the management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and financial reporting matters
including a review of the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31st July 2008 of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the AC engaged SHINEWING Risk Services Limited
(the “SHINEWING Risk”) to conduct the internal control review
of the Group’s operation and made recommendation to Group
accordingly. Based on the report issued by SHINEWING Risk,
the AC considered that the key areas of the Company’s internal
control system are reasonably implemented and the Company has
compiled with the requirements of the CG code as set out in the
Listing Rules in respect of internal control.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The AC reviewed the independence of SHINEWING (HK) CPA
Limited and recommended their re-appointment as auditors of the
Group for the financial year 2008/2009 in the forthcoming annual
general meeting ("“AGM”).

Members of Audit Committee
Yeung Chi Tat (Chairman)
Chuang Hong-Jen

Hsieh Yu

Hong Kong
11th November 2008

o FHARRMMBER  NEPEZELER
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Report of the Directors

EETWE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31st July 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are
design and manufacture of silicone rubber input devices which are
mainly used in 4Cs (i) Consumer (consumer electronic devices),
(il Computers (keypads for computers and notebooks) (iii)
Communications (mobile phone handsets) and (iv) Cars (automotive
peripheral products). Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are
set out in Note 35 to the financial statements. The nature of the
principal activities of the Group has not changed during the year.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATION

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st July 2008 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 87.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK6 cents (2007: HKB cents) per ordinary share, totally
HK$48 million (2007: HK$48 million). The final dividend is expected
to be paid to those shareholders whose name appear on the
register of members of the Company on 8th December 2008.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements of the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group spent approximately HK$49,397,000 on
additions to property, plant and equipment mainly for the expansion
and enhancement of its production capability.

EEMAREEFERSMEEZ—FTT/\FLA
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Report of the Directors
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Detalls of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 156.
This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31st July 2008, the Company’s reserve available for distribution
amounted to HK$662,204,000. Movements in reserves of the
Company during the year and the distributable reserves of the
Company as at 31st July 2008 are set out in Note 34(b) to the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers of the Group accounted
for about 55.4% of the total revenue of the Group and the largest
customer accounted for about 22.5% of the total revenue.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers taken together accounted for
approximately 9.6% and 33.3% of the Group’s total purchase for
the year.

None of the Directors, their associates, or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in any
of the Group’s five largest suppliers and customers.
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Report of the Directors

EETH

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (Chairman)

Mr. Wu Ih Chen (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lin Hung-Ming

Mr. Wong Tak Leung

Mr. Huang Te-Wei

Mr. Kirk Yang (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed on 18th April 2008)

Mr. Huang Chi-Wei
(retired on 27th November 2007)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen
Mr. Hsieh Yu
Mr. Yeung Chi Tat

Pursuant to Articles 86 & 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. Kirk Yang was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 18th April 2008. He will retire at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and being eligible, offer himself for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. Mr. Lin Hung-Ming,
Mr. Wong Tak Leung and Mr. Huang Te-Wei will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS’ CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
Executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence to
Rule 3.13 of Listing Rule and considers that all of the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are recommended
by the Remuneration Committee, and decided by the Board,
as authorized by shareholders in the annual general meeting,
having regard to the Company’'s operating results, individual
performance, experience, responsibility, workload and comparable
market securities. No Director is involved in deciding his own
remuneration.

The Company has adopted a pre-IPO share option scheme and
a post-IPO share option scheme as an incentive to directors and
eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out under the
heading “Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the remuneration policy for the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out in Remuneration Report
under the heading “Remuneration Policy”.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors of the Company and
the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in Note
17 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS

Directors’ Interests

As at 31st July 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance of Hong Kong, Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong (“SFQ")) as recorded in the register kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise
notified to the Company and Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
issuer (the “Model Code”) contained in the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on Stock Exchange (‘Listing Rules’), were
as follows:
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Report of the Directors
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(A) Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in the Company

RE R R RIEER G IR
Number of shares/underlying shares held
in the Company
REDAARENRE  HERHEE
Approximate
percentage
Equity of issued
Capacity in derivatives share capital
which interests Interests (Share Total of the
Name of Director  are held in shares Options) interests Company Notes
Esps BEERN IR R ER B ERAHE ERATE fiit
fTETA BITRAN
(k) BREDH
Huang Sheng-Shun  Settlor of Huang Trust/ 413,940,000 421,990,000 52.75% 1,288
1 Beneficial Owner 7,500,000 550,000
ERERETA/
BRlEEA
Wu Ih Chen Beneficial Owner 500,000 455,000 965,000 0.12% 4
Lin Hung-Ming Beneficial Owner 9,640,000 320,000 9,960,000 1.26% 5
AR ERBEAA
Wong Tak Leung Beneficial Owner 5,760,000 275,000 6,035,000 0.75% 5
HER ERBEAA
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of 413,940,000 - 414,170,000 51.77% 6&7
HEH Huang Trust/
Beneficial Owner - 230,000
R :.u%x /\/
BREAA
Notes: Hiat -
1. Huang Trust is a discretionary trust, of which Mr. Huang Sheng- 1. BRNERAZERT EBREERE

Shun is the settlor, Homelink Venture Corp. is the trustee and

family members of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun (including Mr.

Huang Te-Wei) are beneficiaries.

BEEE)BERA
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The 413,940,000 shares, representing approximately 51.74%
shareholding of the Company, are directly held by the following
seven British Virgin Islands companies (7 BVI Companies”) in

aggregate as follows:

2. #%413,940,0008% & 15 - BN A R A4
51.74%KIIRHE - HA T EREBR L
HERAR([TREBRZES AR DA
BRA - SHEIT o

Approximate
percentage of

issued share

capital of
Name of the 7 BVI Companies No. of Shares held the Company
TRREBEZBEERAER FEROEE EARRFE BT
BRANBOE DL
Ace Chain Investments Corporation (“Ace Chain”) 149,100,000 18.64%
China Gain Holdings Limited (“China Gain”) 103,560,000 12.94%
Highwise Investment Group Corporation (*Highwise”) 57,600,000 7.20%
Join Success Business Inc. (“Join Success”) 34,560,000 4.32%
Jumbo Regent Investment Limited (“Jumbo Regent”) 34,560,000 4.32%
Master Rich Business Limited (“Master Rich”) 28,800,000 3.60%
Million Era Holding Corporation (“Million Era”) 5,760,000 0.72%
Total 413,940,000 51.74%
&3

The 7 BVI Companies are respectively 100% owned
subsidiaries of Acuwake Enterprises Limited (‘Acuwake”).
Acuwake is 100% owned by Homelink Venture Corp. as
trustee of Huang Trust. Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is the settlor
of Huang Trust and acccordingly is taken to be interested in
such Shares. Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is also a director of

each of the 7 BVI Companies.

TREBE TS QA F BAcuwake
Enterprises Limited ([Acuwake])
B100%HE z B Y 8 2 8] - Homelink
Venture Corp fEAEKETAMNETARE
BAcuwake 100% % » BREFREER
BERELHETA - BB IERZS
RIDFHEEER - EBREETATR
REBEZEESARSARINES -
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The 550,000 shares represent Shares exercisable pursuant to
options granted to Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun on 16th May 2007
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company and
which is exercisable at a price of HK$2.20 per share during
the period from 8th June 2008 to 15th May 2017.

The 455,000 shares represent Shares exercisable pursuant
to the options granted to Mr. Wu Ih Chen on 16th May 2007
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company and
which is exercisable at a price of HK$2.20 per share during
the period from 8th June 2008 to 15th May 2017.

320,000 shares and 275,000 shares are Shares exercisable
pursuant to the options granted to Mr. Lin Hung-Ming and
Mr. Wong Tak Leung, directors of the Company respectively
on 16th May 2007 under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of
the Company and which is exercisable at a price of HK$2.20
per share during the period from 8th June 2008 to 15th
May 2017.

Mr. Huang Te-Wei is a son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and
a beneficiary of Huang Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is
taken to be interested in the same block of 413,940,000
shares held by the 7 BVI Companies.

The 230,000 shares represent Shares exercisable pursuant to
the options granted to Mr. Huang Te-Wei on 16th May 2007
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme of the Company and
which is exercisable at a price of HK$2.20 per share during
the period from 8th June 2008 to 15th May 2017.

RERBERARAT 68 —BTN\FRH
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(B) Interest in associated corporations of the Company

RE R B EEREE R #E
Approximately
percentage
of issued
share capital
Name of Capacity in Number of of the
Name of associated which interests Class of shares Company
Director corporation* are held Shares interested NG|
Esps HEEE AR FREENEH R4 &Rl BEES CEROTREWN
HROHE BREAL
Huang Sheng-Shun Homelink as trustee Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
EHR of Huang Trust Huang Trust US$1.00 each
Homelink{E A& K BREENERTA BT .00ETH LR
EEMETA
Acuwake Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BERETENHRTA Bik1.00R LA E BR
Ace Chain Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENETA BRR1.00Z TR L AR
China Gain Settlor of Ordinary sharss of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENETA FRR1.00% TR E AR
Highwise Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENHRTA Bik1.00R LA E BR
Join Success Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENETA BRR1.00E T L BR S
=
Jumbo Regent Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100% =
Huang Trust US$1.00 each =
ERERNZTA BR1.00ETH LB g
2
(T
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Approximately
Percentage
of issued
share capital
Name of Capacity in Number of of the
Name of associated which interests Class of shares Company
Director corporation* are held Shares interested NG
EEpg HEEEER FEERNEH R4 &R BERE CERITREH
HRHHE BABA
Huang Sheng-Shun Master Rich Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
= Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENETA BRI .00ETHE BR
Million Era Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BREENERTA BiR1 .00E AL B
Huang Te-Wei Homelink as trustee Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
HER of Huang Trust Huang Trust US$1.00 each
Homelink{E A& K ERERNHREA BRR1.00Z TR L AR
EFEMETA
Acuwake Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BERETNZEA BRI .00E AL BR
Ace Chain Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENZRA BT .00ETE L AR
China Gain Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENZEA BiR1 00E AL B
Highwise Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US3$1.00 each
BERETNZEA BRI .00E AL BR
Join Success Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%

Huang Trust
BEREANZEA

US$1.00 each
F1.00E TR L BAY
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Approximately
Percentage
of issued
share capital
Name of Capacity in Number of of the
Name of associated which interests Class of shares Company
Director corporation* are held Shares interested NG
EEpg HEEEER FEERNEH R4 &R BERE CERITREH
HRHHE BABA
Huang Te-Wei Jumbo Regent Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
EER Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREENZHEA BRI .00ETHE BR
Master Rich Beneficiary of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BERETHXEA Bik1.00% T L BR
Million Era Settlor of Ordinary shares of 1 100%
Huang Trust US$1.00 each
BEREANERTA BR1.00ETEBR
*Notes: *Btat -

For details of the corporate structure of each of the associated
companies, please see notes 1 to 3 of the sub-section headed “(A)
Long positions in Shares and underlying Shares in the Company”
under the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive Interests”

in above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st July 2008, none of the
Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company nor their
respective associates had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

BHEBHERFNEERBFE  F2HL
NEERETETHABMER | —EIE (A
RAR B KA D A 1o R

£3-

BREXHBEEEN R_ZFTZENFLA
=t+—B BMEEFELAQFATIBTRAER
HEEBBEARNAR R SE T AR AE
(E&REZRBEGRMFEXVE) BB - 48
BRI R B RE (IR IRE 5 R B RIS
XVEBSE7 M8 BB A E AN MR A (B ¥
RIFFE S MGG iR ERR R E
BHHESORR) + H(0)REE 5 MEE KB
FIO2AFAE R L RPTR M B ¢ 3K(c)iR
IR ST RI A A& AN 7] Ko Bt 32 P RO BE e 2ROR
& o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has two share option schemes, namely the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (“Pre-IPO Share Options”) and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme (“Post-IPO Share Options”).

The Pre-IPO Share Options

The Company had adopted a Pre-IPO Share Option on 16th May
2007, the principal terms of which are substantially the same as
those of the Post-IPO Share Option and are summarized in the
section headed “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VI
to the Company's Prospectus. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share
Options is to provide incentives or rewards to employees of the
Company and/or its subsidiaries (including Executive Director but
excluding Non-executive Director) as absolutely determined by the
Board (“Participants”) for their contribution to the Group.

An option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Options is exercisable at
the subscription price of HK$2.20 per Share (subject to adjustment
and vesting period). If a grantee does not cease to be Participant
from the date of grant of options (.e. 16th May 2007) to him
up to the business date immediately prior to the date of the 1st
anniversary (“Anniversary”) of the Listing Date, the grantee may
exercise up to 1/56 of the options granted to him on or after the
date of the 1st Anniversary. In the event that the grantee does not
cease to be a Participant up to the business day prior to the date
of the 2nd, 3rd, 4th and 5th Anniversary, he is entitled to exercise
an addition of up to 1/56 of the options granted to him on or after
the relevant date of Anniversary respectively.

On 16th May 2007, the Company granted 9,070,000 options
under the Pre-IPO Share Options.

Bt
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Details of movement in such options granted under Pre-IPO Share  F R RIB B X A M BEE R B R E R

Options on 16th May 2007 during the year were as follows: ZEZEFRA T NARENERENSEEF
BT
Options to subscribe for shares of the Company
ARERAARGNERE
Exercise period
Category or name Balance as  Granted during  Lapsed during Exercised during Balance as (subject to Exercise price
of grantees at 1.8.2007 the period the period the period at 31.7.2008 vesting period) per share
ERANSHASE RZBBLE Bt BRE&H BrenfE  W-EENE g BRITREE
NR-BiEs tA=t+-H (REGRH)
s
HKS
A
Directors
Bz
Huang Sheng-Shun 560,000 - - - 560,000 (8.06.2008 - $2.20
Bk 15.05.2017
Wu Ih Chen 485,000 - - - 455,000 08,06.2008 - $2.20
REH 15.06.2017
Lin Hung-Ming 320,000 - - - 320,000 (8.06.2008 - $2.20
ivi:: 15062017
Wong Tak Leung 275,000 - - - 275,000 (8.06.2008 - $2.20
EER 15.05.2017
Huang Te-Wei 230,000 - - - 230,000 08,06.2008 - $2.20
EEA 15.06.2017
Huang Chi-Wei 320,000 - (320,000) - - (8.06.2008 - $2.20
EHE 15.06.2017
Employees 6,785,000 - 1,190,000/ - 5,595,000 (8.06.2008 - $2.20
&8 15.05.2017
Tgti 8,936,000 - (1,510,000) 7,425,000
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Mr. Huang Chi-Wei retired as Director of the Company following the
Annual General Meeting held on 27th November 2007. Therefore, his
options lapsed following his retirement on 27th November 2007 .

The share options were held by certain grantees who ceased to be
the employees of the Group during the year.
No share options were cancelled during the year.

During the year, no share options were granted under Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme.

Post-IPO Share Options
The Company adopted a post-IPO Share Options on 16th May

2007,

the principal terms of which are summarized in the section

headed "Post-IPO Share Option Scheme” in Appendix VI to the
Prospectus. Up to the date of this report, no option has been
granted under the Post-IPO Share Options.

(@)

Purpose of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Options is a share incentive scheme and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contribution
of the participants. The Post-IPO Share Options will provide
the participants an opportunity to have a personal stake
in the company with the view to achieving the following
objectives:

° motivate the participants to optimise their performance
efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

o attract and retain or otherwise maintain on-going
business relationship with the participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term
growth of the Group.
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(b) Participants of the Scheme

Participants of Post-IPO Share Options include employees
and directors of the Group, suppliers, customers, consultant,
advisor, manager, officer, research, development or
technological providers of/to the Group or any entity in which
the Group holds any equity interest.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue under
the Scheme

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Options and any other share option schemes
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
total number of shares of the Company in issue at the date
of approval of the Post-IPO Share Options (i.e. 16th May
2007). The Company may seek approval of the shareholders
in general meeting to renew the said 10% limit such that
the total number of shares in respect of options that may
be granted under the Post-IPO Share Options or any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10%
of the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date of approval to renew the limit. Notwithstanding
the above, the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share Options and
any other share options schemes of the Company shall not
exceed 30% of total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The maximum entitlement for any one participant is that the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any 12
months period must not exceed 1% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any further grant of options
in excess of the said 1% limit shall be subject to shareholders’
approval in general meeting with such participant and his or
her associates abstaining from voting.

(b)

(©)
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Timing of exercise of options

The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and in any
event such period shall not be longer than 10 years after the
date of grant of the option.

The subscription price per share

The subscription price per share in respect of an option
granted under the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is such
price as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company
at the time of the grant of the option, but in any case the
subscription price shall not be lower than the higher of:

° the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date on which the option is offered,
which must be a business day;

o the price being the average closing price of the shares
of the Company as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of offer of the
option; and

° the nominal value of a share of the Company on the
date of offer.

Duration of the Scheme

The Post-IPO Share Options will remain in force for a period
of 10 years from its adoption date (i.e. 16th May 2007).
However, the Company may terminate the Post-IPO Share
Options prior to such period and in such event no further
option may be granted but options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the terms of Post-IPO Share Options.
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INTERESTS OF THE SUBSTANTIAL FERFMEZR
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st July 2008, so far as is known to the Directors, the RIZZTENFLA=+—H8  BESFA - U
following persons have an interest or short position in the shares or N A TH B IRIEFZFH LB EHIEXVEE2 R
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed 37 &S &I R TE B[R A A &) # 58 R AR IR 35 5 & 5
to the Company under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV B §&HI 336K BN AR A FE M E L
of the SFO and are recorded in the register kept by the Company RS sk ABRANG (D oS sl Ak B -

under section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in the Shares and underlying REKR#GRHEBERGHNES
Shares

Percentage of
interests as to

Number of Number of the issued
shares held in  shares subject share capital
Name of shareholder Nature of interests the Company to options* Total of the Company /\/ote(g)
RRER BRME BEALH BRESR By ARAEERORA it
RH#E WRBHE* WEREHEL
Acuwake Controlled corporation 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 51.74% 1
of Huang Trust
BRELEHIRT
Homelink Trustee of Huang Trust 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 51.74% 1
EREANETA
Ace Chain Beneficial interest 149,100,000 - 149,100,000 18.64% 1
EnfEn
China Gain Beneficial interest 103,560,000 - 103,560,000 12.94% 1
EiifEn
Highwise Beneficial interest 57,600,000 - 57,600,000 7.20% 1
EnfEn
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Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of interest as to
shares shares the issued
Capacity in which shares held subject to share capital
Name of shareholder interests are held in the Company options Total of the Company Note(s)
RRER BiME BEARR  BREVRH ECL Y ONGRE S gt
RHB&A RHG#E WREEEAEDL
Huang Sheng-Shun Settlor of Huang Trust/ 413,940,000 - 421,990,000 52.75% 1
abR Beneficial interest 7,500,000 550,000
BEREFNZTIN/
TAfES
Tong Mei-Jen Family interest/ 413,940,000 - 421,990,000 52.75% 1
EXY Beneficial interest 7,500,000 550,000
R/ BRER
Huang Te-Wei Beneficiary of Huang Trust/ 413,940,000 - 414170,000 51.77% 3
EER Bengficial interest 230,000
BEREANTEAN/
EnlEn
Chao Yu Ting Family interest/ 413,940,000 - 414,170,000 51.77% 3
HEE Beneficial interest 230,000
kR Eankn
Lo Wah Wai Interest in controlled 413,940,000 - 413,940,000 51.74% 182
BER corporation of Homelink
FHomelinkiZ 5 2 A1 4
Tsang Kwan Li Family interest 418,940,000 - /413,940,000 51.74% 2
LEH Rk
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(1) The reference to 413,940,000 shares relates to the same block
of shares directly held by the 7 BVI companies in aggregates as
controlled companies of Huang Trust. For details, please see notes
1 to 3 of the sub-section headed “(A) Long positions in Shares
and underlying Shares in the Company” under the section headed
“Directors’ Interests” in above. Ace Chain, China Gain and Highwise

are three of the 7 BVI Companies directly held such respective

shareholding of the Company as disclosed in above.

Accordingly, Acuwake being the 100% holding company of the 7
BVI Companies, Homelink as trustee of Huang Trust and Mr. Huang
Sheng-Shun as settlor of Huang Trust are taken to have an interest
in such shares. Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is also beneficially interested
in 550,000 shares exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20
each pursuant to options granted to him on 16th May 2007 under
Pre-IPO Share Options. Ms. Tong Mei-Jen, the spouse of Mr. Huang

Sheng-Shun, is also deemed to be interested in such shares which

Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun is interested in.

(2)  The entire issued share capital of Homelink is beneficially
owned by Mr. Lo Wah Wai. Ms. Tsang Kwan Li is the spouse of
Mr. Lo Wah Wai. Accordingly, Mr. Lo Wah Wai and Ms. Tsang Kwali

Li are deemed to be interested in the shares which Homelink as

trustees of Huang Trust is taken be interested in.

(8)  Mr. Huang Te-Wei is the son of Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun and a
beneficiary of Huang Trust. As such, Mr. Huang Te-Wei is taken
to be interested in the 413,940,000 Shares directly held by
the 7 BVI Companies as controlled companies of Huang Trust.
Mr. Huang Te-Wei is also beneficially interested in 230,000
Shares exercisable at the subscription price of HK$2.20 each
pursuant to options granted to him on 16th May 2007 under
Pre-IPO Share Options. Ms. Chao Yu Ting is the spouse of
Mr. Huang Te-Wei and accordingly is deemed to be interested in all

the Shares which Mr. Huang Te-Wei is interested in.

7%413,940,0008% B& 17 1§ A EE?* RB R B¥

EARMERERERAENAREGHEERA
WE—Hikt - BEFER2E X E5E
| — BRI (AR AR R R AR5 8
A& 19 & B KT 5123 ° Ace Chain » China
GainkHighwise BT R EBRE X FH S A RN E
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5% 0 A R B AR IR B R A 7 B S AT IR AR AE Y
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f&2.20% Tt 1) 3B 18 B 17 15 i 15 #9550,000%
BOFHEEESERS BB REENRB
EXPRTNRARERREEEAEZD
ZERDPHEEER

Homelinkt) 2 BB BHITR AR EZER T EE
WA  BEFML LT REERTENRS -
Hit - EEHEEREEFAZTHEER/R
Homelink{E /& & X 15 75 8915 78 A M #4815
BRERHROPERER o

BEBRALEAEBRIENRTRERE
AR mAC Bt EEBLERBER
413,940,000 H7TR KB E X 8 & A &) {E
AEREAEHRAREEFENRNTES
o BEBLERBRBEE XA AMEE
AMERER-—ZTLER AT ABRTHN
BREE SR 0B THRBETEMEN
230,000kt P HE B - HERZ L RE
EEEENRE B THRANEREL
EHRARENERG PR ER

Annual Report 2008 79 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

=
S
=
<t
=
oc
(=]
L
=
-
=
(=)
=
=
=
L




Report of the Directors
EEERE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st July 2008, the Directors and
the Chief Executive of the Company were not aware of any person
who has an interest or short position in the Shares, or underlying
Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the
Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in 10%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any other
member of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors
or the chief executives of the Company or any of their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance, to which the Company, any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party and
in which a Director of the Company had material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of or at any time during the
year, nor had there been any contract of significance entered into
between the Group and a controlling shareholder of the Company
during the year ended 31st July 2008.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during
the year ended 31st July 2008.

COMPETING INTERESTS

As at 31st July 2008, in so far as the Directors were aware, none
of the Directors or their respective associates had any interest
in a business that competed or was likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this
report, there is sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee in compliance
with the Listing Rules. The audit committee comprises of Mr. Yeung
Chi Tat, Mr. Chuang Hong-Jen and Mr. Hsieh Yu, all of whom are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group, and to review the Company's annual report and
half-yearly reports and to provide advices and comments thereon
to the Board.

The audit committee has reviewed the Group’s annual results for
the year ended 31st July 2008, including the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year, the Directors are of the opinion that the Company
has complied with the code provision as set out in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Company’'s corporate governance practices are set out in
Corporate Governance Report of this annual report.
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Report of the Directors
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
8th December 2008 to 10th December 2008, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be effected. The
record date for final dividend is 8th December 2008.

In order to qualify for the final dividend and to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company, the shareholders’ of the Company
should ensure that all transfers, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5th December 2008.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board are pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HKB cents (2007: HK6 cents) per share for the year ended
31st July 2008, totalling HK$48,000,000 (2007: HK$48,000,000)
which is expected to be paid on or before 23rd December 2008 to
its shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 8th December 2008 subject to shareholders’ approval at the
AGM to be held on 10th December 2008.
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Report of the Directors
EERRE

AUDITORS

KPMG resigned as one of the joint auditors of the Company on
22nd July 2008. SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited remained as one of
the auditors of the Company. The consolidated financial statements
for the year have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited,
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment,
A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company for the re-appointment of SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Huang Sheng-Shun
CHAIRMAN
Hong Kong

11th November 2008
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EAVR R SRS

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
16/F., United Centre

iAo

Shineﬂ)ing

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF TA YANG GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ta Yang
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 87 to 1565, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st July 2008, the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
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Independent Auditor’s Report

EIRVR S SR ES

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’'s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st July 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ip Yu Chak

Practising Certificate Number: PO4798

Hong Kong
11th November 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement

g‘ﬂ_\ :\/i%

For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZT\ELA=+-HILEE

2008 2007
NOTES —EENF —TFLF
MEE HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
Turnover X 9 744,908 629,839
Cost of sales HEK A (531,419) (410,670)
Gross profit EM 213,489 219,169
Other operating income HAn g A 9 21,075 13,281
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEMAX (28,988) (20,917)
Administrative expenses TR (94,945) (46,939)
Other net expenses H RS 55 10 (8,795) (665)
Finance costs BhE R AN 11 (1,875) (5,389)
Share of results of an associate DR E NP 1,398 50
Profit before taxation B B A A 101,359 158,590
Income tax (expense) credit Frefi(Fx)EE 12 (976) 999
Profit for the year FRE 13 100,383 159,589
Dividends recognised as FNERA
distribution during the year kIR E 14 48,000 80,000
Earnings per share (HK cents) SRR ZEF (BL)
Basic R 15 12.55 19.95
Diluted e 15 12.55 19.93

Annual Report 2008 87 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

A BEERER

As at 31st July 2008
RZEE\F+A=1+—H

2008 2007
NOTES —EENE ZERLF
Pt HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Non-current assets IERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BEREE 18 302,885 245,367
Construction in progress EETRE 19 12,110 1,001
Prepaid lease payments BMHERIE 20 61,166 12,177
Interest in an associate g yNGIl: £ 21 2,643 1,328
Deferred tax assets EIERIR éf? 29 556 885
379,360 260,758
Current assets MENEE
Inventories FE 22 137,921 113,705
Trade and other receivables FEUE ZER A
/Hﬁﬁrﬁuﬁhﬂﬁ 23 292,904 229,835
Income tax recoverable AI UL B AT S FR 1,588 -
Bank balances and cash IRITER MRS 24 487,429 609,255
919,842 952,795
Current liabilities BB E
Trade and other payables BB SRR
H th T RRIB 25 99,182 90,412
Bank borrowing RITER 26 - 50,000
Derivative financial instruments PTEEBMTA 27 827 -
Income tax payable FERTERSHL 51,065 50,996
151,074 191,408
Net current assets MENEEFE 768,768 761,387
1,148,128 1,022,145
Capital and reserves BARKNEE
Share capital [N 28 80,000 80,000
Reserves s 1,068,128 942,002
Total equity EBE 1,148,128 1,022,002
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 29 - 143
1,148,128 1,022,145

FIEICENHKAYBEREDIRBREETE R
TETENF+—A+—BHERERETE  LHT

The consolidated financial statements on pages 87 to 155
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of

Directors on 11th November 2008 and are signed on its ZBEBREKEE
behalf by:
Director Director
o g%

REEEERERAT 88 —TT/\ER



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
—|I— N7
ARB T = B %
For the year ended 31st July 2008
Share Statutory
Share Share  options  Retaned Exchange  surplus Legal
capital  premium  reserve profits — reserve  resenve  reserve Total
i EER
RE RhEE  ERE REEN EIRE #0B:  AERE &%
HKP000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKFO0D  HKEO000  HKS000
Tér T TErL TEr T TErL T TEn
(Note 1) Note 2)  (Note 3)
(hssx1) (Fzk2)  (M3E3)
1st August 2006 RZELE E\A-H 59,818 - - 167,195 7,142 15,261 - 249,376
Bxchange difference on translation of BEMBLARNBRE
financial statements of subsidiaries FEAMES Z 8T
and recognised directly in equity ERERNERRED - - - - 489 - - 11489
Profit for the year EM T - - - 159,589 - - - 159589
Appropriation to reserves BRERE - - - o) - 58 49 -
Total recognised income and ENBRBMAR
expenses for the year Fi 5 - - - 153678 - 5,862 49 159,589
Capital injection B 182 44149 - - - - - 44331
Elimination of share capital on REEZABHERE
group reorganisation (60,000) - - - - - - (60,000
Share isstied on group reorganisation REBERBETRR 60,000 - - - - - 60,000
Shere issued under placing and public offering  REEERAREERIRE 20000 680,000 - - - - - 700,000
Share issuing expenses OES5T - (64,204 - - - - - (64,200
Equity-settled share-based transactions BREAHORHEERS - - 1421 - - - - 1421
Transfer to reserve for value of HAMERENER
share option lapsed ERERE - - 1) 21 - - - -
Dividend declared and paid during the year ~ FAERREEMARSE - - - (80,000) - - - (80,000)
At 31st July 2007 RZEE+E+A=1-H 80,000 659,945 1400 240,804 18,631 21128 49 1,022,002

=
=
=
<
=
c
o
L
=
-
=
o
=
=9
=
L.

Annual Report 2008 89 T Yang Group Holdings Limited



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

Share Statutory
Share Share  options Retained Exchange  surplus Legal
capital premium  reserve  profits  reserve  reserve  reserve Total
eS| EER
Rx BHEE  EHE KSR ENRE H0EE  AEHB ag
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tén TEzx TEzx TEx TEx TEx  TExn  TEx
(Note 1) Note 2 (Note 3)
(Fzr1) GEZ I ER)
At 31st July 2007 RZZB+E+A=1+-H 80,000 659,945 1,400 240,804 18,631 21,128 49 1,022,002
Exchange difference on translation BENBARNHHRE
of financial statements of subsidlaries FEEMELES - - - - 68021 - - 68021
Share of exchange reserve of an assoclate  EEENAIE X Rk - - - - 238 - - 238
Income recognised directly in equity ERRERRERONA - - - - 68259 - - 68259
Profit for the year EREH - - - 100,383 - - - 100,383
Appropriation to reserves BRERE - - - 416) - 416 - -
Total recagnised income and ERERRNAR
expenses for the year Bxes - - - 99,967 - 416 - 100,383
Fauiy-settled share-based ransactions BREMORHERR S - - 5484 - - - - 5dp4
Transfer to reserve for ARMERENEE
value of share option lansed ERZEE - - (698) 698 - - - -
Dividend declared and paid during the year ~ FAZRRERARE - - - (48,000 - - - (48,000
31st July 2008 R-ZFE\FLtA=T-H 80,000 659,945 6,186 293,619 86,890 21,639 49 1,148,128
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

#

\FEtAZt-HLFE

Notes:

1.

Share capital

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Group, the
Company acquired the equity interests of entities under common control
and became the holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising
the Group. Detalils of the Reorgnisation are set out in the prospectus of
the Company dated 28th May 2007 .

As the Reorganisation was not completed as at 31st July 2006, the
share capital in the consolidated balance sheet as at 1st August 2006
represented the aggregate amount of paid-in capital of the companies now

comprising the Group, after elimination of investments in subsidiaries.

Statutory surplus reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
the Company’s subsidiaries established and operated in the PRC are
required to appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) as determined in accordance with the PRC accounting rules
and regulations, to statutory surplus reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve must

be made before distribution of a dividend to equity owners.

Legal reserve

In accordance with Macau Commercial Code, the Company’s subsidiary
incorporated in Macau is required to appropriate 25% of its net profit
to a legal reserve until the balance of the reserve reaches 50% of its
respective company’s registered capital. Legal reserve is not distributable

to shareholders.
Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
The consolidated profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

includes a profit of HK$45,482,000 (2007: HK$4,058,000) which has

been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

= A AN =~ —1 2%
,Zw SR En=
For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
OPERATING ACTMITIES RESTE
Profit before taxation PR A g A 101,359 158,590
Adjustments for: BATEEEL AR
Finance costs BB KA 1,875 5,389
Interest income FEHA (16,601) (7,625)
Decrease in fair value of TTESBMTEA
derivative financial instruments NEERD 827 -
Net loss on investment KEEEFE 123 -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments A E RIS 455 259
Depreciation e 35,224 20,878
Share of results of an associate PaN it /N e (1,398) (50)
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE - WE R
plant and equipment R EE 1,178 134
Impairment losses recognised in BB E F R
respect of trade receivables HERBEEE 552 738
Bad debts directly written off BEMEER 82 167
Equity-settled share-based payment expenses R ER IR E
BEE3 5,484 1,421
Operating cash flows before EEESEBAIN
movements in working capital KERSRE 129,160 179,901
Increase in inventories FEEM (8,594) (31,463)
Increase in trade and other receivables FEUWE IR K R E A
JE WK IEE N (38,101) (27,374)
Increase in trade and other payables BT E SRR R H A
FERTFRIBIE N 568 9,375
Cash generated from operations RELEEFHNRS 83,033 130,439
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BB ENGH (3,396) 6,541)
PRC income tax refund (paid) REN(EAT)RBIFTEH 52 (178)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REKEETHNRSFE 79,689 123,720
INVESTING ACTMITIES RETER
Purchase of investments BERE (55,182) -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEME - WENKEE (49,397) (60,443)
Purchase of prepaid lease payments EEENHEERE (47,800) (1,978)
Payment for construction in progress ERETITREMK (22,914) (40,258)
Proceeds from sales of investment HERERFTSRIE 55,059 -
Interest received BRI B 16,024 7,625
Dividend received from an associate B U= N R A 321 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - MR MR
plant and equipment K FT1S R 136 197
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES ARBETENRSFE (103,753) (94,857)
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZT\ELA=+-HILEE

2008 2007
—EENFE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EE
Repayment of bank borrowings EIRRITIER (50,000) (140,000)
Dividends paid B E (48,000) (80,000)
Interest paid BFLE (1,875) (5,506)
Capital injection EE - 44,331
Proceeds from issue of shares BT M FT IS RUE - 635,796
New bank borrowings raised MrEiRITER - 100,000
Repayment to directors BEZESFIR - (9,925)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM (AR REBETEHN
FINANCING ACTIVITIES REFE (99,875) 544,696
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN HeRBESEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R 2) B inFE5E (123,939) 573,559
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FUNEERRESESEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 609,255 35,123
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ERS B 2% 2,113 573
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END FRNESRESEEY
OF THE YEAR, represented by BIRITEB IR
bank balances and cash 487,429 609,255
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=NE e Ed

For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

GENERAL

Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 23rd February 2006 in preparation for
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in manufacturing and sale of silicone rubber related
products.

Pursuant to a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the
Group, the Company acquired the equity interests of entities
under common control and became the holding company
of the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 28th May 2007 (the “Prospectus”).

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange
on 8th June 2007 (the “Listing Date”).

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting from
the Reorganisation under common control. Accordingly, the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31st July 2007 have been prepared as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the period
presented.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate
Information” section to the Annual Report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (‘HK$"). Other than those subsidiaries established
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) whose functional
currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”), the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries are HKS.

As the Company is listed in Hong Kong, the directors consider
that it is appropriate to present the consolidated financial
statements in HKS.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZT\ELA=T-AILEE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new standard, amendments and interpretations (“new
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning 1st August 2007 .

Hong Kong Accounting  Capital Disclosures
Standard ("HKAS”) 1

(Amendment)

HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 Reclassification of Financial Assets

(Amendment)
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
HK(FRIC)-INT 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment
HK(FRIC)-INT 11 HKFRS 2. Group and Treasury

Share Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no prior
period adjustment has been required.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

HE FLA=ZT—ALEEFE

2 APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments and interpretations that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKAS 1 & 32
(Amendment)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
HKAS 27 (Revised)
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
HKFRS 8

HK(FRIC)-INT 12

HK(FRIC)-INT 13

HK(FRIC)-INT 14

HK(FRIC)-INT 15

HK(FRIC)-INT 16

Presentation of Financial
Statements'

Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on
Liguidation’

Borrowing Cost'

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statement”

Share-based Payment — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combination®

Operating Segments'’

Service Concession Arrangements?

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their
Interaction?

Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate'

Hedges of a Net Investment in a
Foreign Operation®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January

2009.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January
2008.
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2008.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July 2009.
° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st October
2008.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate the application of these
revised standards, amendments or interpretations will have no
material impact on the results and financial position of the Group
except for the adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27
(Revised). The adoption of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the
accounting for business combination for which the acquisition
date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1st July 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised)
will affect the accounting treatment for changes in a parent’s
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of
control, which will be accounted for as equity transactions.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments,
which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(a) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement of the Company and entities (including
special purpose entities) controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies of
an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income statement
from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

Al intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Business combination - Common control

combinations

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when
the combining entities or businesses first came under the
control of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognised
in respect of goodwill or excess of acquirer's interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common
control combination, to the extent of the continuation of
the controlling party’s interest.

The consolidated income statement includes the results
of each of the combining entities or businesses from
the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the
common control, where this is a shorter period, regardless
of the date of the common control combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses
had been combined at the previous balance sheet date
or when they first came under common control, whichever
is shorter.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's
balance sheet at cost less any identified impairment
loss.

3 FEETHER®

(b)

REEEERERAT 98 —TT/\ER

EBest - HEEHEH

BAMBRETRELARHA
MAHERREBNNEREE
B ORMZSEAAAHEERE
BERD TS AR A G
-

EHERREBNEEFE R
BT ARNREREEAH - &
ZHIOERFENERT  EHF
THIAHPEENEERKRB I E
HREBEBTERMNEE  BERX
RBENRFHEBEN AR ZES
O Z WIBR AN & BT T R

27
B

FERnRERSAHERIAER
MES MASNBLAGAEBEARE
ENERAMRAHFERHEHKHA
sRER I FL ARSIz B R ET A HA R (A
BREMMAE)  MAEE LR
Aotz HE -

ES
S

0> XH m§ D)

AUBBRTHLELESE  BR
BREBNLE-—EAZKERRE
BRI (AREERE)
aptmE7 -

W,

(0 5

REBEARNERE

P /2 ) B 35 T A B AR (R = £
fa B 3 B M0 AL AR 5 AR 2 R A
BEAMER



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

NN e

For the year ended 31st July 2008
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEEHEX®
POLICIES (Continued)
(d) Investment in an associate (d) REEEQTNRE
An associate is an entity over which the investor has BERARE—EIREEREERY
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an BHNER HEHBETEMEB R A
interest in a joint venture. M IEN BB ERER -
The results and assets and liabilities of an associate are BERNAINER EEREBGEIN
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements CHEREINAZERAUBR
using the equity method of accounting. Under the = BEBEERZE  REEQATMNEK
equity method, investment in an associate is carried in BENIERAREEEEEBERTY
the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for B YHASESEZEEQEMN
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net BEFENKNBEEESHIEL AR [
assets of the associate, less any identified impairment loss. LA KR & A fr] 2 38 Bl B R E B 48 o
When the Group's share of losses of an associate equals EAREEBES(EEBE R RMEIENE
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes ERNBEERZBE R NER
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of (BREAMNRAER  mZRAE=
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group EE B AEENZEE QRN
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An REFEN—HD)  MAKETH
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is BERAESENE—PEIB -8
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred NI EELEE  MAaE
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on BUALBEEEELATRETER
behalf of that associate. SREZHERERNREBR
WHERR o —
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the REBSHEH#RRNEE - BEKRSK
identifiable assets, liabilites and contingent liabilities over ANBERQEFEB LUK AT
the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised A E5E - K EMEAIFTAER -

immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the EEEERAANSEB S QG ET
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of RPE - BEEBEAANEERER
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate. B8 N A A e AR ¥ 8 o
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (including land and
buildings held for use in the production, supply of goods
and administrative purposes) (other than construction in
progress) are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful
lives and after taking into account their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and
equipment in the course of construction for production or
for its own use purpose. Construction in progress is carried
at cost less any recognised impairment loss. Construction
in progress is classified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated income statement in the year in which
the item is derecognised.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use rights is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, amortisation is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the period of the rights using the straight-
line method.
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HE-ZTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FESTBEm®

POLICIES (Continued)

() ERTH

(9) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of two
categories including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and loans and receivables. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
The accounting policies adopted in respect of each
categories of financial assets are set out below.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective basis for debt
instrument.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss has two
subcategories, including financial assets held for trading
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near future; or

° it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or it is a derivative that is not designed and effective
as a hedging instrument.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition,
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value recognised
directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. At each balance sheet date subsequent to
initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and
other receivables and bank balances and cash) are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
any identified impairment losses. (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FESTBEm®

POLICIES (Continued)

(9) Financial instruments (Continued) () €I HE®)
Financial assets (Continued) THEEE)
Impairment of financial assets DA ERE
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment CRIEENSEERTEATRE

at each balance sheet date. Financial assets are impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of
the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the
financial assets have been impacted.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

° significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables, assets that are assessed not to
pbe impaired individually are subsequently assessed for
impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group's past experience of collective payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
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past the credit period, observable changes in national or B8 2 B gk i 75 487 R R BB iR
local economic conditions that correlate with default on # o

receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment
loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted
at the original effective interest rate.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When trade and
other receivables are considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credit to profit or
loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment 10ss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FESTBEm®

POLICIES (Continued)

() EMI R

(g) Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all
of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally
classified as other financial liabilities and derivative financial
instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
pasis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables
and bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
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\FLA=+—RAIEEFRE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subseqguently
remeasured to their fair value at each balance sheet
date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and
effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing
of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature
of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the
cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly
in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is calculated using the weighted average
method.

3 FEETHER®

(9)
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(i)

Impairment losses

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

) Sale of goods

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on the
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which
generally coincides with the time when the goods are
delivered to customers and the title has passed.

i) Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Revenue recognition (Continued)
iii)  Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is recognised

when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment
have been established.

Equity settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant
date is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting
period, with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

At each balance sheet date, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates, if any, is
recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used
in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities, are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

HE-Z

\FLA=+—RAIEEFRE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(1)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit
or loss, except when it relates to items charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in equity.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
fransactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising on a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case, such exchange
differences are recognised in equity in the consolidated
financial statements. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised
directly in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in equity.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date, and their income and expenses
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised as a separate component of
equity (the exchange reserve). Such exchange differences
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

The Company as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FEEHHER®

POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are presented as
deferred income and are released to income over the
useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expense items
are recognised in the same period as those expenses are
charged in the consolidated income statement and are
deducted in reporting the related expense/are reported
separately as “other operating income”.

(p) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and
mandatory provident fund defined contribution schemes are
charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

(g) Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in
finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
which they are incurred.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affect both current
and future periods.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
of their estimated residual values. The determination of the useful
lives and residual values involve management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the residual value and the useful life
of the property, plant and equipment and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the depreciation in the year and the estimate will be changed
in the future period.

Impairment losses recognised in respect of trade receivables
The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously monitors
collections and payments from its customers and maintains a
provision for estimated credit losses based upon its historical
experience and any specific customer collection issues that its
has been identified. Credit losses have historically been within
the Group's expectations and the Group will continue to monitor
the collections from customers and maintain an appropriate level
of estimated credit losses.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant estimates are required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the
ordinary course of business. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is made.

4

CRENESES:CESE-P Y
(%)

EEF THABE RN EEZRR

NTAEBARRNEZBRELRNEE B
SRR ZENEMEZRR - AJREEE
HT -V REFEEERBEERDEELIER
B

Y -~ iSRRI E

%% 5 M AR 1 1R B i 5t AT {8 A A 1
WA REMARISREE  RAEREE

ﬂﬁ% EEAERFHRFSREEL R
EEENREE - AREEFEAYE ]

B REFEORIGFEERSAIERER - WA

MEEAEHAHR - AlHERA Y
BV B A E - Tt IO @ ROR R
HRIRE -

BLIEN B B AR R R E 1R
AEEHERFETHESEN S - ¥R
BEPHBENFCEMEEMETF B A
EEEMMEEEFP BANEENLR  #
MARERR AEERKEERERTPH
WO B AR WARBRE B &R IA R AT
BERBFETFRRER - SEHEER
BIEL B - BT HIRMAEE IR
MEREEER AAKESREERAE
BEFPRA LS FEE K FNEEE
18 -

BTig

REBBEHNE TREERBOATSH - £
EBTEAMEROBERS AFELEXN G - &
AEEBKBREDR  BFERHMAELHH
BAREEN SR NTRBET - WxEEE
MNEEBHEERASVARNSETR
REETBYENBETHANAMERE
IRIETI TR A ©

Annual Report 2008 13 1a Yang Group Holdings Limited

=
=
=
<
=
c
o
L
=
-
=
o
=
=9
=
L.



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=NE e Ead

For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to stakeholders through optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes borrowings as detailed in Note 26, cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves. The
directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As a part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
overall strategy of the Group remained unchanged during the
two years ended 31st July 2008 and 2007.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

EXERER

AEENEANEREHEEBAEERE#ES
REHRETSE  BERAEENERARS
BiEE2t TREREERALIR -

AEBNEARBREAH(BERWME
2oE MM EFR) - RE RN FEWAR
AArEDHE ARGEDZ(BED BT
BAKfER) NRAREZTEHRRIER
BRIE - fERRE —RD - ARAEFEE
BARARBERR Y REGEE T
EAKBNERRE BHE_TT\FR
“EEAFLA=+HUEMEAFE - A
SEMBEREERTE -

TMITHR

Categories of financial instruments Rt TEAER
2008 2007
—EEN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Financial Assets SRMEE
Loans and receivables B EW R E
(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERSRRSEFEY) 780,333 839,090
Financial Liabilities cRBE
At amortised cost REIHR AR 99,182 140,412
Derivative financial instruments PTESBTA 827 -

REEEERERAT 114 —2T/\EH



The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-TR)\FLAZT-ALEE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7 MBRREEBEERBER
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other AEENTESRTABEERRESER
receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables, NHEHMEIWGRIE - IRITEHR LIRS - B
bank borrowing and derivative financial instruments. Details of B oEFREMENRIA - RITERELT
these financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. AeMIT A ZESRTEFBENSHE
The risks associated with these financial instruments and the e - TXEHS HZESRTAEH
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The A 2 fex &ﬁﬂﬁlﬁp{fﬁ&:ﬂf&ﬁ’ﬂ@(ﬁ o BT
management manages and monitors these exposures to ensure BERREEZEZRAR UBREENE
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective B IR EUE & e
manner.
Currency risk BB b s
The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures TEEEHRZEBRR - BERKRIRE
arise from sales or purchases by several subsidiaries of the ﬁﬂﬁ%?W%“ﬂbﬂ)ﬁ#ﬁ’]ﬁ]ﬁég%%
Company in currencies other than those subsidiaries’ functional INE B EITIHE RS o A - BT R
currencies. In addition, certain portion of the trade receivables, BHEN  BNBZERFARBITESR R
trade payables and bank balances and cash are denominated RETIARBEI L G N B EHE -
in currencies other than the functional currency to which they
relate.
The following table shows the Group's exposure at the balance THRETAEEREEARNEEERY
sheet date to currency risk arising from recognised assets or BEEEUINERHECEREESAEM
liabilities denominated in a currency other than the functional EENEERR - [
currency of the entity to which they relate.
As at 31st July 2008 As at 31st July 2007
R-ZENELA=1-A A\ZEREFLA-T-H
United States New Taiwan
dollars Euros dollars
(“USD”)’000 (“EUR”)’000 (“NTD”)'000 UsD'ooo EUR'000 NTD'000
ST TR #HakTrn TEL TR #eETr
Asseis BE 32,880 1,913 799 25,200 4,924 1,038
Liabilties af 2,806 - 150 2,178 - 900
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Statements

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7 MBEEBREEREEERBEK®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Coninied
Sensitivity analysis BRE DM
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency of USD, EUR $EII§7¥Kx%E BTk aBHmE
and NTD. R
The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase TRFNAE B BT H AR INE [ &
and decrease in HK$ against the relevant foreign currencies. The FHERSUMBURE - BURE D ITERIELAIN
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency BEEMNAREEERIEE @+ WHINEEX
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at HIO% B ENFABNFRAIRE - TRHOBEH
the year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A HTBE RN - BB A EEEER
negative number below indicates a decrease in profit where MER FF6% o WBTEEERMEERT
HK$ strengthens 5% against the relevant currency. For a 5% Bk5% - BSm M ST E RIZm - M~
weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there would be MEERRAAER o AEBEN LAEREE
an equal and opposite impact on the profit, and the balances M- LFETON -
below would be positive. The analysis is preformed on the same
pasis for 2007 .
usD EUR NTD
Ey Brx Fa%
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE —TTtF ZBENf —ITTtE ZEENF C—TTtE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
THER ThT ThAL THL TAn Thx
Impact on profit for the year ~ HERERIEZE (11,639) (8,909) (1,172) 2,480) ©) 2
In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentive EIRERE - BARFELRRI T REREA

of the inherent foreign exchange as the year end exposures do
not reflect the exposure during the year.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continved)

Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to its variable-rate bank deposits and bank borrowing
(see Note 26 for details of this borrowing) for the year ended
31st July 2008. It is the Group’s policy to keep its bank deposits
and bank borrowing at floating rates of interest so as to minimise
the cash flow interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial assets and
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management section
of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivate instruments at
the balance sheet date. For variable-rate bank deposits and
bank borrowing, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
ended 31st July 2008 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$2,234,000 (2007: HK$2,606,000). This is mainly attrioutable
to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowing and short term bank deposits.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that debtors will default on their
obligations to repay the amounts owing to the Group, resulting in
a loss to the Group. The maximum exposure to credit risk in the
event that the counterparties fail to perform their obligations at the
end of the financial year in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets in the carrying amount of those assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet.

7

BEREEEERBEER®)

R ERR

BHE_ZTTZN\FLA=T—HILFE K
KB AEER MR IRITIERRARITE
RO FEROFERME26)WRERE
MERER - NEBERBRDGHRITER
FRITRARERF AR - BRERE
=R BRE&E -

AEENEREE N BN KRB A
HERPEEREE R

BRED

TXHBREDHIRBIOTET AN
BERAMMERBRET - MEFBMERT
FRERITERND TR ERINEEE
MAREEEERABESENE[/FESR

g -

fMF =R EF TIBS0EES  MATAE
hEBEFIE  AREEHEE_ZTTN
FEA=Zt+—BUHEEFEENREFEEEM
SR #92,234,0008 T( Z T+ F ¢
2,606,000/87T) - FERREAAREBEHE
H P g R RIBITE R NIRRT EREOF
EEMK -

FERER

EFERBREEBATETEERARAEH
FREMNETMSAREEENRR - M
FHRMBREEERS RERBITABSHE
EEREREENEE - AEERBR A
RAEEERBERMIINZEEEREES
fR o

Annual Report 2008 117 Ta Yang Group Holdings Limited

=
=]
=
<
=
oc
(=}
L
=
-
=
o
=
<
=
(T



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

IN=NE e Ead

For the year ended 31st July 2008

\FLA=+—RIEEFRE

HE-Z

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not have any other significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables consist of a large number of
customers, spreading across diverse industries and geographical
areas.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by international credit-
rating agencies.

Liquidity risk
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate

by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivatives financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.
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For th year ended 31st July 2008

7 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continved)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Liquidity risk tables

7 BHXEREEEERBEK®)

REBELREMR 2
RBELRRIIE

Weighted
average Within
effective 1 year Total Carrying
interest or on undiscounted amount
rate demand cash flows  at 31st July
R —FRH ABREE WEtA=+-A
ERFIE BEX REAR HEREE
% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
% TET THT THET
2008 —TTNE
Non-derivative financial liabilites T TELRERE
Trade and other payables JENE BRI E MR X - 99,182 99,182 99,182
2007 —ZTE
Non-derivative financial liabilites ~ FfT£TES¢RER
Trade and other payables BB SRR E MR - 90,412 90,412 90,412
Bank borrowing BITER 4.89 51,875 51,875 50,000
142,287 142,287 140,412

8 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL
SEGMENTS

Business segment

The Group principally operated in a single business segment: the
manufacturing and sale of silicone rubber and related products.
Accordingly, no business segment information is presented.

8 EXKREDIP

E3) Yk

AEBETERLEE —HEFnEl - &iEkiHE
EWBHEBER - At B2 XKD
HEHR -
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
Hz FrAZ+-RLEFE

8 BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL 8 XEBRMEDH )
SEGMENTS (Continued)
Geographical segments #h & 5 EB
In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, i@y HEEZTERE - 5T
segment revenue is based on the geographical location of BRI E AELE
customers.
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAET
Turnover based on geographical locations: LHIBALE D FER SRR
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FE (HABRIN 342,283 287,630
Hong Kong BB 130,742 131,038
Other Asian countries E b Tm MBI R 188,792 140,535
The Americas EM 51,687 34,532
Europe M 31,404 36,104
744,908 629,839
An analysis of segment assets and capital expenditure by ARAEBARTE»EEHSMRFE - i
geographical area in which the assets are located has not been BENEEEMTEMDENSBEERE
presented as the Group’s assets are substantially located in KESZ DT
the PRC.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-STN\FtRA=T—HLFE
9 TURNOVER AND OTHER OPERATING 9 ¥XFERHMKERA
INCOME
Turnover represents sales value of goods sold to customers net EEEEETEPNEREEEBERMEE
of sales tax and value added tax. Tt RSB o
Revenues recognised during the year are as follows: FRERRBENT
2008 2007
—EENE —EFELF
HK$°000 HK$'000
T T
Turnover e
Sale of goods HESm 744,908 629,839
Other operating income Eae g A
Interest income R B U A 16,601 7,625
Government grant (Note) BB (B 3E) 264 4,882
Sundry income HIEIA 4,210 774
21,075 183,281
Total revenues W s 765,983 643,120
Note: For the year ended 31st July 2008, the amount represented Wt BT )\ FLA=+—HLFE -
unconditional grants from the PRC government specifically for BRAFEETEBNEE A EBAER
encouraging the Group's technology development in the PRC. For e BT R B 3 i 45 T B0 G h 4
the year ended 31st July 2007, the Group was entitled to a one- P BHE_TTLFLA=+—HIE
off government grant for the Group’s investment in the PRC. FE AEEERMERTFENEERE
B2 XEBRFEBE -
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
Hz \EtA=+—-RLFE

10 OTHER NET EXPENSES

10 HtpAxF5

2008 2007
—EENE —ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Exchange losses (= 6,667 531
Loss on disposal of property, MEWE - HE
plant and equipment RBEEE 1,178 134
Net loss on investment KB EEFRE 123 -
Decrease in fair value of derivative PTESBTEAFERD
financial instruments 827 -
8,795 665
11 FINANCE COSTS 11 BB
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&x FET
Interest expenses on: AT EHEHFER
— bank overdrafts and bank borrowings —ARAFABEEEDN
wholly repayable within five years RITE S RIRITER 1,875 5,389
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
BE_ZTT)\FLA=1—HILFE
12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) 12 FIEFHMEX(ER)
2008 2007
—BENE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT THT
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBFIEN
— current year —RFE 91 2,005
— overprovision in prior years —BEFERERE (8) (15)
83 1,990
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BT S FTISA
— current year —RFE 3,530 2339
— overprovision in prior years (Note) — B FEBERE (T (2,823) (3,511)
707 (1,172)
Macau tax JRPIBIIR
— overprovision in prior years — B FE B - (5,200
Deferred taxation EAETH I8 —
— current vear —REFEE 194 3,383
— attributable to a change in tax rate —REREHHNTE 8) -
186 3,383
976 (999)
Note: Overprovision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax expenses credited to Wit : RZZBEZNFR-ZZLFTAER
profit or loss during 2008 and 2007 represents the tax effect on RS R EEEA
tax benefits available to the Group in respect of certain purchases SERB ST LER_TTFMHE
of equipment produced in the PRC pertained for the year 2007 RIZZENER-_ZTZLFHEES
and 2006 but approved in 2008 and 2007, and the agreement ETHBEREMNRE UGS
of the tax authorities on deductibility of certain expenses. BLHDRCE T 5 &) ek m SR %
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) conines 12 FRABH B (&) )

Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% (2007: 17.5%)
on the estimated assessable profit for the year.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and British Virgin Islands (‘BVI"), the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

Ta Yang Group (Macau Commercial Offshore) Limited (‘“MCQO”)
was incorporated as a commercial offshore entity in Macau and
is exempt from Macau Complementary Tax.

Pursuant to the income tax rules and regulations of the PRC,
the companies comprising the Group in the PRC are liable to
PRC Enterprise Income Tax as follows:

- Dongguan Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Industrial Company
Limited (“Dongguan Ta Yang’) is an approved foreign
investment product export oriented enterprise during the
year ended 2007 and 2008 and eligible to a preferential
tax rate of 12% up to 31st December 2007. From 1st
January 2008 onwards, Dongguan Ta Yang applied the
unified tax rate of 25%.

- Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial Company
Limited ("Dongguan Tay Yang”), Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic
Technology Company Limited (“Huzhou Ta Yang”) and
Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber Plastic Industrial Company
Limited (‘Dongguan Tai Yang”) are foreign investment
enterprises and are entitled to tax concessions whereby
the profit for the first two financial years beginning with the
first profit-making year is exempted from income tax in the
PRC and the profit for each of the subsequent three years
is taxed at 50% of the prevailing tax rate.

- Dongguan Tay Yang is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
24%. The first profit-making year of Dongguan Tay Yang
was in 2005. Accordingly, Dongguan Tay Yang is exempted
from PRC Enterprise Income Tax from 1st January 2005 to
31st December 2006 and is entitled to a 50% exemption
of income tax from 1st January 2007 to 31st December
2009.

AEEBERERAF 124 —22N\ER
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-TTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) coninues) 12 FRSBBEX (%) 2

- Huzhou Ta Yang is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
26.4%. The first profit-making year of Huzhou Ta Yang
is 2004. Accordingly, Huzhou Ta Yang is exempted from
PRC Enterprise Income Tax from 1st January 2004 to
31st December 2005 and is entitled to a 50% exemption
of income tax from 1st January 2006 to 31st December
2008.

- Dongguan Tai Yang is entitled to a preferential tax rate of
24% and it sustained tax losses during the year ended
31st July 2007 and 31st December 2007. Dongguan Tai
Yang is exempted from PRC Enterprise Income Tax from
1st January 2008 to 31st December 2009 and is entitled
to a 50% exemption of income tax from 1st January 2010
to 31st December 2012.

On 16th March 2007, the PRC promulgated the Law of the
PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order
No. 63 issued by the Tenth National People’s Congress. On
6th December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. The New Law and
Implementation Regulations changed the tax rate for the current
period. The New Law provided a five-year transition period from
1st January 2008 for those subsidiaries which were established
before the promulgation date of the New Law and which are
entitled to a preferential lower tax rate under the effective tax
laws or regulations and hence the 25% tax rate will only be
applicable to certain subsidiaries after the expiry of tax holidays
and concessions.

- WM KFEZEBE264%EETHE -
MMNAFNEEENFEFEA_-ZE
e o FHit - N AKFE ZZE N
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
Hz FrAZ+-RLEFE

12 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) conines 12 FRABH B (&) )

The income tax expense (credit) for the year can be reconciled to FRGHASZ(ER)BEEERROK
the profit before taxation per the consolidated income statement AR M EERIAT -
as follows:
2008 2007
—EENF ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation R Wt A& A 101,359 158,590
Tax expense at rates applicable to 7iE AR R R a M &
profits in the countries concerned MEFTEMRIBRSE 16,182 19,324
Tax effect of income not subject to tax BARBBRANTR KT E (861) (33)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible PAIB A R E
for tax purposes 633 840
Under (over) provision in prior years BEFEBRET R (BREERE) (2,831) (8,726)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses REERTIEEGE K
and other temporary difference HEMEREENTGEEE 1,171 7,149
Effect of tax exemptions granted to R EIME A R ERIE
PRC subsidiaries W& (3,748) (13,567)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BB RERVIIEEE
tax losses (5,942) -
Decrease in opening deferred tax ERATER D AR FEYIRLE
liability resulting from a decrease HIEAER D
in applicable tax rate (8) -
Tax credit A % (3,620) (5,986)
Income tax expense (credit) for the vear FRMEHRAZ (%) 976 (999)
Details of deferred taxation are in Note 29. B RARERIB R FHEH K29 o
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZT\ELA=+-HILEE

13 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

13 FAEA

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHETT
Profit for the year has been F R A TH A8 H0BR (REA)
arrived at after charging (crediting): LA IR -
Auditor's remuneration IZEEN N &
— current year —RFE 1,000 2545
— over-provision in prior year — B FEBERE (175) -
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FETT E A 455 259
Bad debts directly written off BEEMIEER 82 167
Costs of inventories sold BEEFEKRA 531,419 410,670
Depreciation e 35,224 20,878
Directors’ emoluments (Note 17) EEMe (FEE17) 11,468 5,452
Impairment losses recognised in respect PIEWE P IRKIER
of trade receivables BEEE 552 738
Research and development costs (Note) e AN (B RE) 5,869 2,118
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  WMERREEE
plant and equipment 1,178 134
Payments under operating leases in B REFEE
respect of land and buildings HEBE TR 8,473 6,879
Sewage disposal expenses 55 930 693
Staff costs (excluding directors’ BIXAN(TEREFHNE)
emoluments) (Note 16) (F¥zx16) 226,966 155,836
Note: During the year ended 37st July 2008, research and development Wex: BEZTEZENFLA=+—HLHF

costs included staff costs of approximately HK$4,030,000 (2007 :

HK$2,118,000) for the Group's employees engaged in research

and development activities, which are also included in staff costs

as disclosed in Note 16.

- MERABREREHEETDHHAR
£ B E 8 #) 8 T A A %94,030,000% 7T
(ZZETL4F:2,11800087T) * B
BIEM 16T HEEM B TAARA °
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

HE-Z

14

15

\FLA=+—RAIEFRE

DIVIDENDS RECOGNISED AS
DISTRIBUTION DURING THE YEAR

14

FRABRB/DIRZIRE

2008 2007
—EENF —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Dividend recognised as distribution FNERBDIK
during the year: pd 3N
Interim dividend declared Bk} B R A A AR S
and paid (Note 1) (PfF5ET) - 80,000
2007 final dividend of HK$0.06 BRMN_ZZTLF
per share (2006: Nil) paid REARR B & H%0.0678 7T
(ZEERF + 8) 48,000 -
48,000 80,000

Note:

(1) The interim dividends for the year ended 31st July 2007
represented dividends declared and paid by certain companies
now comprising the Group to their then shareholders before they
became subsidiaries of the Company.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.06 per share for the year ended 31st July 2008. The
proposed final dividend will be paid on or before 23rd December
2008 to those shareholders whose names appear on the
Company's register of members on 8th December 2008.

This proposed dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on the Group’s profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company of approximately HK$100,383,000 (2007:
HK$1569,589,000).

The basic earnings per share is based on the weighted average
number of 800,000,000 (2007: 800,000,000) ordinary shares
inissue during the year, assuming the Reorganisation had been
effective on 1st August 2006.

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st July
2008 was the same as the basic earnings per share because
the exercise price of the Company’'s share options was higher
than the average market price of the Company’s shares for the
year ended 31st July 2008.

15
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZT\ELA=T-HILEE

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

15 SRER @)

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31st July BE-_ZTZHF+HA=Z+—BHILFENE

2007 is calculated based on the weighted average number of

B EEE & A Jh iR B AT /Y I E F 1

shares in issue adjusted for the potential dilutive effect caused g MBEBRAABEE Hﬁ%ﬁi‘ (M 7E

by the share options under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(Note 30) assuming that they were exercised on the grant date,

16th May 2007,

30) i A BB A (&R

EFHPRRIE

N\_ZEE+FN A

+RBRH EzéTT{ﬁ)fZEEE’]/%E%/ 7

2008 2007
—EZTN\E —ET+F
Weighted average number of ordinary FrESRERZFRAR
shares for the purposes of LR N 8
basic earnings per share 800,000,000 800,000,000
Effect of deemed issue of shares A RIERRAERTEIT
under the Company's share RAYEZITRRD
option scheme K E - 700,292
Weighted average number of ordinary FrESREERTRAR
shares for the purposes of AR N e 8
diluted earmings per share 800,000,000 800,700,292

16 STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDING DIRECTORS’

16 EIEA (T EHREEME)

EMOLUMENTS)
2008 2007
—EENE ZEELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&T FHET
Salaries, allowances and other benefits e AR EMET 212,597 149,117
Retirement benefit schemes contribution RRE R IR 10,193 5,634
Share-based payments VAR A B 89 5 3K 4,176 1,085
226,966 155,836
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
- i

16 STAFF COSTS (EXCLUDINGDIRECTORS’ 16 EI XA (FTEBIEEEM L)

EMOLUM ENTS) (Continued)

The subsidiaries in Hong Kong operate defined contribution
schemes under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance which are available to qualified employees.
The assets of the schemes are held separately from those of
the subsidiaries in independently administered funds. Monthly
contributions made by the subsidiaries are calculated based on
certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs or fixed sums
as stipulated under the relevant requirements, as appropriate.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the
PRC, the subsidiaries of the Group in this country participate
in respective government retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) whereby the subsidiaries are required to contribute
to the Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of the eligible
employees. Contributions made to the Schemes are calculated
based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll costs
as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation
of the Group with respect to the Schemes is to pay the ongoing
required contributions under the Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represent gross
contributions by the Group to the Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC and the defined contribution
schemes operated in Hong Kong.

Details of the Company’s share options granted to the employees
of the Group are set out in Note 30.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
E-FEN\FLA=t-AILEE

17 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 17 EEREREEENS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEME
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the ten (2007: ENRENTR(ZEZTLE - LE)
nine) directors were as follows: EXZEMNSEIINT
For the year ended 31st July 2008 HE-_ZZNFLtA=1+—HLHF
IS
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees benefits bonus  contributions payments Total .
A1) BAER DY)

i REMEA g AEE BROAE a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn TEn TEn TiEn Tin TEn

Executive directors Hi7Es
Huang Chi-Wel resigned on ERR(N-FTtET-R

27t Novernber 2007) ZTEAEH) - 240 20 4 70 334
Huang Sheng-Shun L - 1432 1500 8 372 3,386
Huang Te-Wei EER - 520 288 13 156 977 L
Lin Hung-Ming MER - 892 759 4 216 1911
WWong Tak Leung EER - 640 298 12 186 1,136
Wu Ih Chen REH - 1,104 980 68 308 2,460
Kirk Yang (appointed BEBR-ZENE

on 18th Apri 2008) MATN\REZf) - 786 53 5 - 844
Independent non-executive BUkaEs

directors
Chuang Hong-Jen iy 120 - - - - 120
Yeung Chi Tat BrE 180 - - - - 180
Hsieh Yu # 120 - - - - 120

420 5614 3,698 228 1,308 11,468
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

17 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR 17 EERSAEEEME @
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEM<
For the year ended 31st July 2007 HE-_TZT+F+LtA=+—HILF
JE*
Salaries, Retirement
alowances benefit
and other  Discretionary schemes  Share-based
Fees bengfits bonus  contributions  payments Total
we He R BIEN DRGA
REMBHN  BERL  HEAR EEMER @t

HKB000  HK$000  HK$O00  HK$O00  HKS000  HK$000
THETL T T AT TAT T

Executive directors HiTES

Huang Chi-Wei BRI - 751 - 33 50 834

Huang Sheng-Shun ] - 1,251 - 53 86 1,390

Huang Te-Wei EER - 438 - 20 36 494

Lin Hung-Ming HEH - 571 - 26 50 647

Wong Tak Leung BER - 585 45 20 43 693

Wu I Chen REH - 1,183 - 52 71 1,308

Independent non-executive BIFHTES

directors

Chuang Hong-Jen [y 25 - - - - 25

Yeung Chi Tat BEE 38 - - - - 38

Hsieh Yu Bl 2 - - - - %
88 4,779 45 204 336 5,452

No directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments MEEENHEZE 2N \FER_ZT+F

during the two years ended 31st July 2008 and 2007. tA=T—BIEMEFERERRENRE

EREE -
(b) Senior management’s emoluments b) SHEEEMS

All of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in HE-_ZEZLFR-ZZEZTNF

the Group for the years ended 31st July 2007 and 2008 tA=Z+—BLFE Tx£EE2I

were directors of the Company whose emoluments are hEAERFMALTHARQAE

set out above. - FEMeFEIR EX -

No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the BETZZE)\FR_ZEETLF LA

directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the =+ EIJtFWIiVW AEEIW

Group or as compensation for loss of office during the EREETNME  EABEZNMA

two years ended 31st July 2008 and 2007. oA N AR B2 [ B Y 22 B ol 2

ERLIOREE -

AEEEERERAF 132 —22N\ER
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 ¥% - BME R R &

Properties Furniture, Leasehold L
held for Motor  Plant and fixtures and  improve- [
own use vehicles machinery equipment ments Total

B #£8
BlEBRME RE BERES Rkt RENEEE fit
HKP000  HK$000  HK$000  HKO000  HK$000  HKS000
T FiET T TET TET T
COST AR
At 1st August 2006 RZZERENA-R 17,780 4,130 146,654 28,175 20,746 217485
Exchange realignment B 5 SR 106 124 4,398 825 568 6,021
Additions BE 4,688 610 54,641 6,840 18,567 85,346 —
Transfer from construction ERAARTR
in progress (Note 19) (PzE19) 45317 - 2,790 1272 5,119 54,498
Disposals HE - - (2,606) (524 - (3,130)
At 31st July 2007 RZEZ+E+A=+—H 67,891 4864 205877 36,588 45000 360,220
Exchange realignment B 7414 689 28,083 5,396 6,038 48,520
Additions NE 2,775 1,502 24,280 16,844 3,99 49,397
Transfer from construction BEATETR
in progress (Note 19) (MzE19) 1,878 - 8919 412 1,099 12,308
Disposals HE (1,233) (605) - (4) - (1,842)
At 31st July 2008 RZEE\F+A=1—H 78,725 6450 268,059 59,236 56,133 468,603
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZiHE
st August 2006 RZZ2E/E\A—H 854 2,708 59,776 14,129 15,483 93,950
Exchange realignment &5 R 8 82 1,859 415 460 2824
Provided for the year FNEE 269 347 13,298 3,619 2,345 20,878
Eliminated on disposals BB 3 - - (2,327) 472) - (2,799)
At 31st July 2007 RZBZLFLA=T—A 3,131 3,187 72,606 17,691 18,288 114,853
Exchange realignment R AE 264 423 10,365 2536 2,581 16,169
Provided for the year FREE 3,335 285 20,592 5,816 5,19 35,224
Eliminated on disposals BB 3 (91) (435) - 2) - (528)
At 31st July 2008 RZEZ\FLA=T—AH 6,639 3,410 108,563 26,041 26,065 165,718
S
CARRYING VALUES B =
At 31t July 2008 RZEENE+A=1—H 72,086 3,040 164,496 33,195 30068 302,885 §
=
At 31st July 2007 RZZZ+F+A=1—H 64,760 1,727 133,271 18,897 26,712 245,367 §
g
(TN
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For th ar ended 31st July 2008
Hz FrAZ+-RLEFE

18 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 18 ¥ - BMER&E @)

(Continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated LA EWZE - BB MBI B A B SEIE A
on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives less TEFT AR ERFIREET EINE
residual value as follows;
Estimated useful life Residual value
et A EREH FlerEE
Properties held for own use Shorter of the unexpired -
lease term and 50 years
HEERWE MR EMEERRS0F - UEREE A%
Motor vehicles 5 years 10%
A 5%
Plant and machinery 10 years 10%
5 R i 2% 104
Fumniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years 10%
B RHERERE 5%
Leasehold improvements Shorter of the
lease term and 5 years -
MEMEEE HAEHNEF - UREH A%
The carrying values of properties held for own use shown above LB EE BYENRTERSE !
comprises of:
2008 2007
—EENE ZERLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Medium-term lease FHMEE
- in Hong Kong —[IREB 9,757 9,993
- in the PRC — I FA AR 62,329 54,767
72,086 64,760

AEEEERERAF 134 —22N\EH
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZT\ELA=T-HILEE

19 CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19 E&ITRE
2008 2007
—EZTN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#&xT FHEIT
At 1st August H“NAH—H 1,001 32,970
Exchange realignment ME H AR 503 990
Additions NE 22,914 21,539
Transfer to property, plant and EREYE - BE
equipment (Note 18) A (HEE18) (12,308) (54,498)
At 31st July wtA=+—~H 12,110 1,001
20 PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 20 ENHEERE
The prepaid lease payments consists of cost of land use rights in ENEERERRZEBMNFEN i
respect of land located in the PRC, on which the Group’s factory (REBEZRERLIHE FEERERE LR
plants and staff quarters are built. The remaining period of the )R LHE AR AE - NEE i
land use rights of the Group ranges from 36 to 48 years. FRERNFIRER N T36E48F T o
21 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 21 BE QTR
2008 2007
—ETN\F ZETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Unlisted shares, at cost IE LR - ERAAE 1,278 1,278
Share of post-acquisition profit and DR % & F
exchange reserve less distribution of profit M R R A 9 Ik 1,365 50
2,643 1,328
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BB RRMEE

For the year ended 31st July 2008

/\\/

BE FLA=ZT—ALEFE

21 INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (conines) 21 BE&E QTR (2)

Detall of the associate at 31st July 2008 is as follows:

Eﬁ%i’l%ﬁu?
Proportion of
Form of Place of Registered ownership
business incorporation/ paid up interest Principal
Name of company structure operation capital directly held activity
NCIESE EBEBER FE AL B HERFEN
Fed—bioh21 HEf#RRE HEEERLE TEXK
SITY Silcum & Ta Yang  Incorporated Germany EUR250,000 50% Trading of silicone
International GmbH tiles and electrical
("SITY") switching systems
and related items
SITY Silcum & Ta Yang  sEfAKSZ == 250,0008% 7T 50% WRBEBR
International GmbH BERRR
(simyl) HHEEES

The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of the

B A 7 R BB AR

Group's associate is set out below: MEERZWT -
2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT FET
Total assets BEMBE 10,326 7,841
Total liabilities BE®E 5,039 5,185
Net assets BEFE 5,287 2,656
Group’s share of net assets of an associate ~ AEE D (HEEE N F]
HEEFE 2,643 1,328
Revenue zs 31,442 17,907
Profit for the year F R F 2,796 77
Group's share of results of FREREEDE
an associate for the year il N O 1,398 50

AEEEERERAF 136 —22/N\EHR
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZT\ELA=T-HILEE

22 INVENTORIES 22 FE
2008 2007
—ETN\F —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHxT FHET
Raw materials R 81,489 64,731
Work-in-progress R 25,909 26,251
Finished goods BURY fh 30,523 22,723
137,921 113,705

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 %W%ﬁ%?ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬁf&@u&%ﬁ
J

(@) (@)
2008 2007
—EZTN\E —ETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FE&T FHET
Trade receivables FEUE SRR
— from third parties —ERE=F 242,625 204,958
— from an associate — e 2 A R 2,500 3,757
Less: Impairment losses recognised B THEIE SRR
in respect of trade receivables R ERE (322) 913)
244,803 207,802
Prepayments, deposits FERFIE - Ze Rk
and other receivables Ry G 48,101 22033
292,904 229,835
The Group’s sales are on open account terms. The Group AEEMHEENZRERET AEE
normally grants to its customers credits periods ranging —RBEFEEFENT30H iWZOEI MEE
from 30 days to 120 days which are subject to periodic B - WAHEEEEHER -

review by the management.
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 EWESRARHMEWR

(Continued) I8 (%)
(@  (Continued) @ (#&)
An aged analysis of trade receivables, net of impairment HMHREERBEEEENERE S
losses recognised is as follows: SRR DITAT -
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Within 1 month or on demand — (B A AR ERER 111,220 88,596
More than 1 month but —EANREELHR=(EA
less than 3 months 95,600 87,235
More than 3 months but =@AEELH+ @A
less than 12 months 36,795 31,706
More than 12 months TZEANE 1,188 265
244,803 207,802
(o) The movements in provision for impairment losses of trade b)) ERESEFREEENEEZS
receivables is as follows: N
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Balance at beginning of the year FHEER 913 217
Exchange realignment ME H T 61 7
Recognised during the year FNER 552 738
Written off during the year FRMEE (1,204) (49)
Balance at the end of the year FUR LR 322 913

AEEEERERAF 138 —22/N\EH



Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
= = >3
iRe SRR T
For the year ended 31st July 2008
BE-TE\FLAST-ALEE
23 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 EWESZRFKREMEWRRK
(Continued) 5 (%)
(c)  At31stJuly 2008 and 2007, the analysis of trade receivables ) RZEZNFER_ZTTELFLA=
that were past due but not impaired are as follows: +—H BEafERRENEKREZ
SERFAWOT
Past due but not impaired
BAHERRE
Neither Over 90 days Over 1 year
past but less but less
due nor than than
Total impaired <90days 1 year 2 years
ook R 9HRMUE —fFENEE I—
TARBE <90 EAPR-F LRME
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAL FHEL FAT FHEL
31st July 2008 ZEEN\FLA=+—H 244,803 212,944 23,976 6,695 1,188
31st July 2007 ZEEEFLA=+—H 207,802 167,625 30,998 9,064 115
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired FEABHTABRENEKEZEREFTHERS
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was WA HA R GREEER R AR o
no recent history of default. L
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BERBERBENERESRRTIESZ
to a number of independent customers that have a good EAEERBRTTHNBYRFEHE -
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, BRIBBALS ANMEEERTESAE
management believes that no impairment allowance is BERBEHRDANRENE - HERE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not HEZSEHTENBELRERE - K
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances SEYERZSERF A TR RS o
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.
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23

24

B ERR I

For the year ended 31st July 2008

FLA=ZT—AILEFE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23 BEWE 5 R K H i B WK

(Continued) I8 (#)

(@) Included in trade receivables are the following amounts o) EREZEFRABRETINAEEE
denominated in a currency other than the functional EODEEBE N EBIENS
currency of the entity to which they relate: I

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

’000 ‘000

T Tt

United States dollars ETT 21,546 21,697
Euros BT 825 1,867
New Taiwan dollars et 10 1,038

(e)  The fair values of the Group's trade and other receivables at ) HBHRASENEWEZERREM
the balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding FEUWGRIES AR BN EE - ER
carrying amounts due to their short-term maturities. HEE AT EEAERDEM

% o
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 24 SRITEBRREE

At 31st July 2008, bank balances and cash comprise of cash
held by the Group and short-term bank deposits of approximately
HK$446,780,000 (2007: HK$571,137,000) with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Bank balances and bank deposits carried interest at average
market rates of 2.63% (2007: 3.90%).

At 31st July 2008, the Group’s bank balances and cash denominated
in RMB amounted to approximately RMB189,205,000 (2007:
RMB14,853,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is
subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations.

A¥EERRERAR 140 —22N\FH

RZZEZENFLA=Z+—H  RITL
&iﬁ@@%li%lhﬁa’ﬁﬁﬁuﬁﬁ
FHBEBA=ZMAsLAANERRITHE
SR #9446,780,00008 T( — 2 T £ F -
571,137,000 7T ) °

RITHERRBITHERIR263E(ZFTT L
F : 3.90B) K FHETISHEET S -

RZZEZENFELA=+—H AEEBEU
ARBHENBITEHRLBSOAEAR
189,205,000 ( ZEE+F : AR
14,853,0007T ) » i AR BINEBERZ
P EBISNE B IR GG R dE ok - BIERNES
38 7E FTBR o
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-TTN\FLA=T—-RALEFE

24 BANK BALANCES AND CASH (conines) 24 SRITHEERRRE ()

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts RITHEBRRSBIE T AREE RN I—
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of BEE M DAINE AT EM IR ¢
the entity to which they relate:

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

’000 ‘000

T T

United States dollars EV 11,334 3,503

Euros BT 1,088 3,057
New Taiwan dollars e 789 - —

The fair values of the Group’s bank balances and cash at the AR AEBEMIRITER - RITEHRKEIRS

balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding carrying B G EAEIE EAZ,HJJ'\ HEHNAFE

amounts due to their short-term maturities. AR EEES
25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 EHESERAREMENSK
i |

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHBxT FHET

Trade and bills payables EESERARERE 56,803 45678

Other payables Eofth FE T RIR 42,379 44,734

99,182 90,412
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B ERR I

For the year ended 31st July 2008

FLA=ZT—AILEFE

25 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables is as follows:

25 ENEZRAREMENST
5 #)

ENEZERANRZENRESTWT

2008 2007

—EENE ZETLF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Due within 1 month or on demand —{E A AR sk Z 5k (E] 22,144 16,481
Due after 1 month but within 3 months —(EABE=EARE JHﬂ 26,333 25719
Due after 3 months but within 6 months =B ABENEARNEIE 4,042 2,254
Due after 6 months but within 1 year 7N E AR —F N EIE 4,128 1,224
Due after 1 vear —F1& 5 HY 156 -
56,803 45,678

Included in other payables are amounts in total of approximately
HK$4,060,000 (2007: Nil) representing accrued directors’
emoluments due to the Company's directors.

Included in trade and bills payable are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the entity to which they relate:

HtEMNRERERNARRESNERT
2 A 494,000,000 T ( —EF+
F ) o

ENEZEREZEARE TIAREE
BHOEER SN EEIEN S -

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

’000 ‘000

T T

United States dollars ED 2,806 2,178
New Taiwan dollars etk 150 900

The fair values of the Group’s trade and other payables at the
balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding carrying
amounts due to their short-term maturities.

BN AEBEN RN E SRR E A AR
EEREHAEEY - IERGEEENAYF
ERMEREERS
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements

NN e

For the year ended 31st July 2008

HE-ZT\ELA=

T—RIEFE

26 BANK BORROWING

27

26 RITER

2008 2007

—EENF —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

F&xT FiET

Unsecured bank loan due within one year R—F R - 50,000

EHMRITER

At 31st July 2007, the bank borrowing carried interest at Hong
Kong Inter-bank Offered Rate (‘HIBOR”) plus 0.65% per annum
and was fully repaid during the year ended 31st July 2008.

The Group’s bank borrowing at 31st July 2007 was denominated
in HKS.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts
of bank borrowing at the balance sheet date approximated to

RZEZEFLA=T—H - FBITERIE
BBRITRAZEFE(EBRITRAZERE D)
IFEFEOGSEFE  WERBEZZE
NFEA=Z+—HLEFERBEHEE -

AEER =
fE 7K L/(/%TEaJrTE

ZLEL A=+ BRI

ARBEERR  ARRITERREHA
25 Eﬁlﬁﬁé%iﬁ?ﬁﬂ@ﬂéﬁﬁéﬁiﬁﬂﬂ?ﬁ

its fair values due to its short-term maturity. HE
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 {TE€® I A
Liabilities
=N

2008 2007
—EENF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Commodity future contracts EmBEEL 827 -

The commodity future contracts represent the trading of silver
with a maturity date on 30th September 2008. All commodity
contracts are normally settled other than by physical delivery of
the underlying commodity and hence are classified as derivative
financial instruments. On maturity, the contracted price is
compared to the spot price and the differential is applied to
the contracted quantity. A net amount is paid or received by
the Group. The derivatives are measured at fair value at the
balance sheet date. Their fair values are determined based
on the quoted market prices of equivalent instruments at the
palance sheet date.

BmPEANER _ETN\FAA=1TH
AMMIRER S - FiBEmE N —RAL

FAEHERMNEDREIAEE - Am
DERITESHM TR - REIME - FTHE

HIREEMAL - UEERAGOBE - &
AEBESNRWEUFRE - TETARNGEE
HRAFENE - HAVPERFRIAR
REBEMMEREET -
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BB RRMEE

For the year ended 31st July 2008

B2

\FLA=Z+—RIEFE

27 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 27 fTA€® I R

28

(Continued)

The Group’s derivative financial instruments are denominated

in USD.

The loss arising from changes in fair value of commodity future

REBOITES R T AARITEHE ©

FR- EmBEAHXTEE EbﬁﬁﬁXE’]

contracts for the year is approximately HK$2,099,000 (2007: BB 4 A2,000,0008 T( —Z T T+ F -
Nil). ) o
SHARE CAPITAL 28 B
Number of
shares Amount
R EE k-]
in thousands HK$'000
Fh% FHET
Authorised: ERE ¢
Ordinary share of US$1 each BREE1EZTHESE
At 1st August 2006 (Note 1) RZEZERFENA— El (%) 50 385
Cancellation of shares (Note 1) FESEAR (FEE1) (50) (385)
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each BREMEIBTHNEER
Increase in authorised capital (Note 1) BAEEBRA (M) 3,900 390
Increase in authorised capital (Note 2) HINETE A (I EE2) 19,996,100 1,999,610
At 31st July 2007 and 31st July 2008 R-EZL+F+A=1+—H 20,000,000 2,000,000
RZZEZENFEA=1+—H
Issued and fully paid: BEITRARE
Ordinary share of US$1 each BREEIAEZTHITER
Issue share at nil paid (Note 1) AT (I EET) - -
At 1st August 2006 (Note 1) RZZZFNA—A(MEET) 10 77
Repurchase of own shares (Note 1) BBEASBRD (HE) (10) (77)
Ordinary share of HK$0.1 each SREEIBITNEER
Shares issued on group REBEHRRET
reorganisation (Note 3) B 17 (B 5E3) 600,000 60,000
Shares issued under placing and RIERE R AFEEET
public offering (Note 3) B 17 (T 5E3) 200,000 20,000
At 31st July 2007 and 31st July 2008 R-EZL+F+A=1+—H 800,000 80,000

AZZEZN\FELtA=1t—H
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
EZE NELA=T—HILFE

28 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

1. The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23rd
February 2006 with an authorised capital of 50,000 shares of
US$1 each (“US Shares”). Upon incorporation, 10,000 shares
of US$1 each were allotted, issued and fully paid. On 25th
September 2006, all the 10,000 issued US Shares were
repurchased by the Company and following the repurchase, the
authorised but unissued share capital was cancelled. On the
same date, the authorised share capital of the Company was
changed to HK$390,000 divided into 3,900,000 shares of HK$0. 1
each and the Company had allotted 1 nil paid share to its then

shareholder.

2. By written resolutions of the sole shareholder passed on 16th
May 2007, the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased from HK$390,000 to HK$2,000,000,000 by the creation
of 19,996,100,000 new shares ranking pari passu in all respects

with the then existing issued shares.

3. As part of the Reorganisation of the Group, the Company issued
600,000,000 shares to Ta Yang Group Limited (“Ta Yang BVI")'s
then existing shareholders to acquire for the entire issued share

capital of Ta Yang BVI.

Immediately upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange on 8th June 2007, at 31st July 2007, 800,000,000
shares of the Company had been issued and were fully paid.
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

BE_ZZ)/\FLA=t-HIFE

29 IEIEFIIE

RFEERBEFEDERNEBRENHIA

29 DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)

recognised and movements thereon during the current and aE(EE)REZEHOT
prior years:
Unrealised Accelerated
profits on tax Estimated
inventories depreciation tax loss Total
FENARERER MEHERE AHHESR ‘st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
At 1st August 2006 RZEERFENHA—H (4,208) 78 - (4,125)
Charged to consolidated REFEBRERNBR
income statement 3,318 65 - 3,383
At 31st July 2007 RZET+F+A=+—H (885) 143 - (742)
Charged (credited) to consolidated ~ RARABERINBR(GEA)
income statement 329 88 (223) 194
Effect of change I tax rate RS- 07 - (8) - 8
At 31st July 2008 —EEN\FLA=1T—H (556) 223 (223) (556)

At 31st July 2008, the Group has unused estimated tax losses of
approximately HK$18,109,000 (2007: HK$29,789,000) available
for offsetting against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses of HK$1,355,000
(2007: Nil). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining losses of HK$16,754,000
(2007: HK$29,789,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. At 31st July 2008, approximately HK$9,656,000
included in the above unused tax losses will expire after five
years from the year of assessment to which they relate to. Other
estimated tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.
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RZBENE+LA=+—8 FEEEH
R B A3 i 5T TE 5 18 918,109,000 7T
(Z T4 :29,789,0005 7t ) + A it
IR IHEF - B3H BEIE1,355000
B ZEELF EBERELEHREE
I_Z EEEA* ?Enﬁ';ﬁ;}:/ﬁnﬁtlj/mi ’ *E%ﬁﬁdi
# T B 816,754,000 T( —EE4F :
29,789,000/ L) ERIEEFLIAEE X
“EENFLA=FT—H " LKA
T 18 &5 18 R 499,656,000 T % 1 E 41 78
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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B M FHRRM 5T

For the year ended 31st July 2008

BHE_ZT\FELA=

T—RIEFE

29 DEFERRED TAXATION (cContinued)

30

For the purpose of balance sheet presentation, certain deferred

tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting
purposes:

29 EEHIE %)

REERBERZVNENME @ & TEEN
HEENBEE THIHE - SIMBHREE W
& EER RGO T -

2008 2007

—EENE —EELF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Deferred tax assets RIERIAE B 556 885
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFRIEEE - (143)
556 742

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the shareholders’ written resolution passed on
16th May 2007, the Company adopted a Pre-IPO share option
scheme (“the Pre-IPO Option Scheme”) whereby the directors
and eligible employees of the Group were given the rights to
subscribe for shares of the Company, the subscription price
per share pursuant to the Pre-IPO Option Scheme is HK$2.20
representing a 37.1% discount to the international offering
price.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all options granted under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme
is 9,070,000 shares which were fully granted on 16th May 2007 .
No further options would be granted under the Pre-IPO Option
Scheme on or after the Listing Date.

30

BRESE

7@%)%5/\_7 = ‘ti:ﬁﬂ +/\ ELZ@E’]HX%
EMREE ARARAE X AFAEER
BREAES(TBER ARSI ERE
) o Bl REBREEURESERRE
Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁmﬂﬂmﬁﬁ BEHRA
FBERERETSSRAREER2.208
UL BRER B EEITRG7 1% o

EITERE & X AREE AT B ETEIR
HEFTA B R FEITRAR M R EE &
/9,070,0000 - MBBEREER =T
TLFRATAEBERDL - ARAR L
MEHE 2%  T2BREBAAREE
AT AR AT 2138 — 20 D BB AR A -
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Notes To The Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-ZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

= ==
30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 30 BRREREe)

(@)  The terms and conditions of the grants that existed during @ AT AEBAE MR EI’J TR R {5
the period are as follows, whereby all options are settled - mAEERESEATEMRN
by physical delivery of shares: MinaEE
Options granted under the Pre-IPO Option Scheme have BREBEEX MBS ERESIFT
a vesting period of one to five years commencing from the REERENSBSRGA LmE B
Listing Date and the options are exercisable for a period of FArAB—ERTF TEHAETF -
ten years. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation REBETEEIENHEETETUNRS
to repurchase or settle the option in cash. BB Ol At E s A o

Number of Number of

options options

granted to granted to
Vesting conditions directors employees Total

BRTEEMN RTEEMN
BERY BREHE EREZE At
1st anniversary of the Listing Date THRHER-BF 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
2nd anniversary of the Listing Date FHRBERES 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
3rd anniversary of the Listing Date AR =A% 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
4th anniversary of the Listing Date rHRBENES 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
5th anniversary of the Listing Date FTHRBRARF 430,000 1,384,000 1,814,000
2,150,000 6,920,000 9,070,000

(o) The number and exercise prices of share options are as (b) BREHEE RITEENT
follows:

Exercise Number of
price options

TEE BRERE

Granted on 16th May 2007 RZEZLFRA+AED HK$2.20 2.2077T 9,070,000
Lapsed during the period HR KK HK$2.20 2.20787T (185,000)
Outstanding at 31st July 2007 ~ RZZEZ+F+A=+—HEKTE HK$2.20 2.208 7T 8,935,000
Lapsed during the year FRERM HK$2.20 2.2077T (1,510,000)
Outstanding at 31st July 2008 ~ RZTENF+A=+—HHKTE HK$2.20 2.20% 7T 7,425,000
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30 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

(©

Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for the share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair value
of share options granted. The estimate of the fair value
of the share options granted is measured based on the
Black-Scholes Option Pricing model. The contractual life
of the share option is used as an input into this model.
Expectation of early exercise is incorporated into the
valuation model.

30 BRETE (2
0 BRENATENESR

LB M ESRENATE
SRR LB REN QT ERT
o MEHBERENQFERTRE
UMahn—=iFma g EE R
AR BRENSNFIAERE
AW —HBAZH - RRITENTE
et A EREA -

Fair value at measurement date HK$1.66
Rt 2 B AFE 1.6678 7T
Share price HK$3.11
AP B 1 3BT —
Exercise price HK$2.20
TEE 2,207 7T
Expected volatility 56.65%
TEERR 1R
Option life 10 years
B AR M 0y F HR 10%F
Expected dividends 2.5%
TEHARR B
Risk-free interest rate (based on Exchange Fund Notes) 4.1%
[B g F & (RIBINEE S FIE)
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 BEFRS
(@)  Other than disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial @ BREEHMERRSITEESN

statements, during the year, the Group entered into the

RER > AEBEEBFEHTIAT

following transactions with related parties: R :

Name of company Nature of transactions 2008 2007
NG XEMHE —EEN\F —TTLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH AT
SITY (Note 1) Sales of silicone rubber keypads 7,181 8,250

SITY(FIzET) HEYBIRE
Receive tooling charges 1,212 248

WHRTEER
Receive fixture charges 6 -

WEREER
Receive modification charges 136 104

s hER
Ta Yang Silicones of America, Sales of goods to - 26,639

LLC ("TSAC”) (Note 2)
Ta Yang Silicones of America,
LLC(TTSAC]) (Hik2)

HERM
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For the year ended 31st July 2008

\FLA=+—RAIEEFRE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

31 BERIRZ @)

(Continued)
(@  (Continued) @ (#&)
Notes: PitsE
(1) Before 18th September 2006, 25% equity interest of SITY (1) RZZEEXFLA+NBZAE-
were effectively owned by each of Mr. Wu Ih Chen and Mr. ARREFTREREEREH R
Huang Sheng-Shun, directors of the Company respectively. FE S B D Rl ¥ ASITYR25%M
On 18th September 2006, the aggregate of 50% equity Kigm e RZZEZRNFALA+TN
interest was assigned to the Group at approximately B SITYA $£50%8% 78 # 745 LA 49
HK$1,278,000 and SITY became an associate of the 12780008 THE T A KL E -
Group. SITYRK AR EBME & 5] -
(2)  TSAC was effectively 20% owned by Mr. Wu Ih Chen and (2) TSACHARREZEZEREHLEER
30% owned by Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun, directors of the EHEEAED R EBREE20%R
Company. Mr. Wu Ih Chen and Mr. Huang Sheng-Shun 0% c R_FZERF+—H—
disposed of their interest in TSAC to two independent third B RERLCEREBREERAN
parties on 1st November 2006 and TSAC is not considered HEILE = HE R ERTSACH
a related party of the Group thereafter. WezE o 18 TSACT BB AKX
EEMEER -
(b)  Compensation of key management personnel ) FEEEEABRM

FAR > ARREENEMEIEERE

The remuneration of directors of the Company and other

members of key management during the year was as BRERF BT
follows:

2008 2007
—ZEZTN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term benefits HIE A 11,377 6,279
Post-employment benefits BEER 12127 330 260
Share-based payments VAR BB S R 1,673 458
13,380 6,997

ARBAEZREEITHRABNHMIHF
MEEeLEBENALTHRE LTSS

7 =k
BMEZ

The remuneration of the directors of the Company and
key executives is reviewed by the remuneration committee
having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 32 EAREIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following REER  NEEBREYE - BERK I—
capital commitments for the acquisition of property, plant and BHEAHIE -
equipment:
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETLF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for ERTAE RS 13,236 10,088

33 COMMITMENTS UNDER OPERATING 33 R&HEKIE

LEASES

The Group as lessee AEBEAEBA

The Group leases a number of properties under operating AEERBLEHERES TWERIER
leases for its factories, offices and staff quarters. The leases B -#AZEREIRSE - ZSHERBHAN
are negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years, with an FT—z=WF  WABEREBER B
option to renew the lease when all terms are renegotiated. None BRFATEFYTE - ZSHEREBIE
of the leases includes contingent rentals. HAMEE ©

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments for future REFER AEBREBEISITRECEHE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases AR BB NONREREREAENT :

which fall due as follows:

2008 2007
—EEN\F ZETLF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET

Land and buildings: T RIETF -
Within one vyear —FR 7,931 7,004
In the second to fifth year inclusive FERF(BIEEEMT) 12,781 19,440
20,712 26,444
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HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

34 BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF 34 XA FMEEERBXRER
THE COMPANY

NOTES 2008 2007
{h=a —EENE T LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBARIMIEE 104,149 104,149

Current assets MENE E
Other receivables H b U TR IE - 1,545
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU I B A B RIE (@) 477,192 92,766
Bank balances and cash RITEBRRS 181,353 561,225
658,545 655,536
Current liabilities mENEE

Other payables H R 0B 258 3,269
Amounts due to subsidiaries JER B R RIFRIE (@ 14,046 10,992
14,304 14,261
Net current assets MENEEFAE 644,241 641,275
Total assets less current liabiliies  @EERMAEBAE 748,390 745,424

Capital and reserves EARKfHE
Share capital & A 80,000 80,000
Reserves i () 668,390 665,424
Total equity EzBE 748,390 745,424
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34 BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION OF 34 XA TMEEEEXRER »)
THE COMPANY (Continued)

(a) Amounts due from/to subsidiaries ) W PESHE A RRIE
The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing and BB AEEM  RERIKRENXK
repayable on demand. The fair values of the amounts at BE BRBEREHREHRRNE
the balance sheet date approximated to the corresponding H - MEREEAN AT EREARE
carrying amounts due to their short-term maturities. BREEMRS -
(b) Reserves (b) f#fe
Share
Share options Retained I—
premium reserve profits Total
BRGEE ROZERE REER k]
4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FAT FHT
At 1st August 2006 RZEZRFENA—H - - - -
Shares issued on group REBEHEFETRD
reorganisation 44,149 - - 44,149
Shares issued under placing  RIEEE R ARBE
and public offering BIIR M 680,000 - - 680,000 ——
Share issuing expenses B EITRI S (64,204) - - (64,204)
Profit for the year FAEH - - 4,058 4,058
Equity-settled share-based BN EBRHERR S
transactions - 1,421 - 1,421
Transfer to reserve for value Bt ERIES
of share option lapsed BEEREHE - 1) 21 -
At 31st July 2007 R-ZEELFLA=+—H 669,945 1,400 4,079 065,424
Profit for the year FAREH - - 45,482 45,482
Equity-settled share-based  #mENHIRMHERR S
transactions - 5,484 - 5,484
Transfer to reserve for value B EERLIER
of share option lapsed EBEEREHE - (698) 698 -
Dividend declared and FATRREIRSEE
paid during the year - - (48,000) (48,000)
At 31st July 2008 RZZENEFELA=+—H 659,945 6,186 2,259 688,390
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HEZZZ)\ELA=t—-BILEE

35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 35 TEMBEAT
Details of the principal subsidiaries held by the Company as at RIZEZENFELA=+—H AQAEA
31st July 2008 are as follows: WEEMEBRBFELT :
Attributable
Place of Issued share equity
incorporation/  Class of capital/ interest of  Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment  shares held registered capital the Group  activities
HRL/ BRIRA/ 558
MEARER BIE Frs R ER EMER EERAESE TEER
Ta Yang Silicone Rubber Hong Kong Ordinary shares 1,000,000 shares 100%  Trading of siicone rubber
Industrial Company Limited of HK$1 each
REYBBIEERAT G LEk 1,000,000 8% 100% EEVE
HETETORR
Chief Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 1 share of HK$1 each 100%  Provision of management
senvices
YEBERRA &k LiEk 1REE 100%  REEERE
TETARR
Ta Yang Group (Macao Macau Ordinary shares 1 share of MOP100,000 each 100%  Trading of siicone rubber
Commercial Offshore) Limited
REEB(RMER iy LiEk 1REE 100% EBVE
BERK) ERAA 100,000 2P &R 1
Dongguan Ta Yang Siicone Rubber ~ PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$86,000,000 100%  Manufacturing of
Industrial Company Limited silicone rubber
REAFEBRRARAR i BAEK 86,000,000 7T 100% HEVE
Huzhou Ta Yang Electronic PRC Contriouted capital - US$38,000,000 100%  Manufacturing of
Technology Company Limited slicone rubber
MR EFHRARAR i BAEK 38,000,000% 7 100% HEVE
Dongguan Tay Yang Rubber Plastic PRC Contributed capital  HK$5,000,000 100%  Manufacturing of
Industrial Company Limited silicone rubber
REZABEHURARAR i NV 5,000,000 7 100% HEVE
Dongguan Tai Yang Rubber Plastic PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$43,323,394 100%  Manufacturing of
Industrial Company Limited silicone rubber
RENFBEHRARAR e UN-V. 43,323 3047 100% HEVE
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For the year ended 31st July 2008
HE-SZN\FtRA=T—HLFE
35 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35 FEMB AT &)
Attributable —
Place of Issued share equity
incorporation/  Class of capital/ interest of  Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment  shares held registered capital the Group  activities
HRAL/ BRITREA/ r5E
WEARER BuhE R85 ERER EtRAER TEER
Huizhou Fu Ying Rubber Plastic PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$3,946,968 100%  Property holding
Industrial Co., Ltd
BMNEREBEARARAR i BAEK 3,046,968 T 100%  MEER
Huizhou Rui Mei Silicone Rubber PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$4,519,777 100%  Property holding —
Industrial Co., Ltd
BMAEHBRRBRAT i BAEK 45197718 T 100%  MEER
Huizhou Shuo Ying Slicone Rubber ~ PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$4,522,287 100%  Property holding
Industrial Co., Ltd
ENERHBRABRAR HE NV 4,522,287 TC 100%  WEER
Huizhou Fu Mei Silicone Rubber PRC Contributed capital ~ HK$4,515,867 100%  Property holding
Industrial Co., Ltd
BMEEHBERBRAR i BAEK 4,515,867 100%  MEER
Note: All entities established in the PRC are wholly foreign owned fs: FAEEFEKIHERHRINGEBED —
enterprises. ES
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the FRINRAN T EERATELENREF
opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the HEENEBEENANEENB AR MARA
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries EERAFANEHEMHB AT ERe@BHE
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in @RI E ©
particulars of excessive length.
None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding as MRERSERNERER - BENBATE
at the end of the year or at any time during the year. BEEBBRITHERES -
< [—]
36. COMPARATIVE FIGURES 36 HLEEF
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform ETHUREEE TENHE  UWEAFEE
with the current year's presentation. E5HAE/H— -
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Five Years Financial Summary

hFMHHE

For the year ended 31st July 2008
Hz FrAZ+-RLEFE

mERE

Year ended 31st July
BELtA=1+—HLEE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
—EINE —TTHFE —TTRFE —TTHF ZBENF
FHEIT FHEIT T T THT
Turnover e 408,914 523,932 579,556 629,839 744,908
Profit for the year F A4 K 84,583 127,697 144,123 159,589 100,383
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES s#REEEREAERE
As at 31st July
HRtBA=+—8
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
“TEMFE —FTRF —FTTAF —TELF SBEAF
F&TT FHEIT FET FET T
(Note) (Note) (Note) (Note)
) (FF&E) (B aE) (BaE)
Total assets EEMRE 348,679 421,339 491,727 1,213,553 = 1,299,202
Total liabilities BfE®E (217,635) (157,373) (242,351) (191,551) (151,074)
131,044 263,966 249,376 1,022,002 = 1,148,128
Total equity LA 131,044 263,966 249,376 1,022,002 = 1,148,128
Note: BeE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23rd February 2006
and became the holding company of the Group with effect from 17th May
2007 as a result of a reorganisation scheme as set out in the Prospectus
dated 28th May 2007 issued by the Company. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31st July 2007 and the
comparatives have been prepared as if the current group structure had been
in existence throughout the years presented.

ERERBMA
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Flat 28, 23/F, Metro Centre ll, 21 Lam Hing Street, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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Tel &3 : (852) 3678 5088
Fax {E5 : (852) 3678 5099
Website #84E : www.tayang.com



	封面
	目錄
	使命
	公司資料
	公司架構
	董事及高級管理人員簡介
	主席報告
	業務回顧與展望
	管理層討論與分析
	企業管治報告
	薪酬委員會報告
	審核委員會報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益表
	綜合資產負債表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	1 一般資料
	2 應用新訂及經修訂的香港財務報告準則（「香港財務報告準則」）
	3 主要會計政策
	4 估計不明朗因素的主要來源
	5 資本風險管理
	6 金融工具
	7 財務風險管理目標及政策
	8 業務及地區分部
	9 營業額及其他經營收入
	10 其他開支淨額
	11 融資成本
	12 所得稅開支（抵免）
	13 年內溢利
	14 年內確認為分派之股息
	15 每股盈利
	16 員工成本（不包括董事酬金）
	17 董事及高級管理層酬金
	18 物業、廠房及設備
	19 在建工程
	20 預付租賃款項
	21 聯營公司權益
	22 存貨
	23 應收貿易賬款及其他應收款項
	24 銀行結餘及現金
	25 應付貿易賬款及其他應付款項
	26 銀行借款
	27 衍生金融工具
	28 股本
	29 遞延稅項
	30 購股權計劃
	31 關連方交易
	32 資本承擔
	33 經營租賃承擔
	34 本公司的資產負債表資料
	35 主要附屬公司
	36 比較數字

	五年財務概要
	封底



